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	� Mr. Sanjay Nayar and Ms. Ananya Tripathi, resigned from the 
Board of directors with effect from January 25, 2022 and March 
11, 2022 respectively.

	� In accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,  
Mr. Prashant Kumar would retire by rotation at the ensuing 
annual general meeting. Being eligible, he has offered himself for  
re-appointment.

	� In the opinion of the Board of directors, Mr. Ranjit Shahani, 
Mr. Sumit Bose and Ms. Padmini Khare Kaicker, independent 
directors, are persons of integrity and they all possess relevant 
expertise and experience necessary for effective functioning of the 
Company. These independent directors have given declarations 
to the Board that they meet the criteria of independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 as well 
as in Regulation 16 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. They have also confirmed that they have registered with 
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs to include their names 
in the databank of independent directors. However, in terms of 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 as amended, these independent directors are not required to 
pass an online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the 
said Institute notified under sub-section (1) of section 150 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

	� Ten meetings of the Board of directors were held during the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2022. These meetings were 
held on April 1, 2021, April 28, 2021, June 14, 2021, July 14, 
2021, August 12, 2021, October 1, 2021, November 11, 2021,  
January 25, 2022, February 14, 2022 and March 22, 2022.

	� Mr. Vijay Bhatt resigned as Chief Financial Officer  with effect 
from August 31, 2021 and Mr. Lakshay Kataria was appointed as 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from October 
4, 2021. Mr. Mayur Mehta resigned as Complany Secretary with 
effect from July 14, 2021 and Mr. Sandeep Phadnis was appointed 
as Company Secretary and compliance officer with effect from  
July 15, 2021.

10.	� POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION

	� The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment is set out in 
Schedule-B. The salient features of the Company’s policy on 
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees is set out in Schedule-C. The said Policy including 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director has been posted on the Company’s 
website www.jbpharma.com.

11.	� CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

	� The particulars as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Schedule-D.

12.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

	� Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board 
consists of Mr. Ranjit Shahani, Mr. Sumit Bose, Mr. Nikhil Chopra 
and Mr. Prashant Kumar. The CSR Committee formulated and 
recommended revised CSR Policy to the Board, which the Board 
approved on February 10, 2021. The salient features of the said 
CSR Policy of the Company and the annual report on CSR in the 
prescribed form are set out in Schedule-E. The CSR Policy and 
annual report on CSR are posted on the Company’s website  
www.jbpharma.com.

	� The Company spent ` 6.95 crores on CSR activities (` 6.61 crores 
on CSR activities and ` 0.34 crore on administrative overheads 
for general management and administration of CSR function) on 
prescribed CSR activities during financial year 2021-22 as against 
obligation of ` 6.94 crores being 2% of the average net profits of 
the Company made during three immediately preceding financial 
years.

13.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGILANCE MECHANISM

	� The Board has constituted Audit Committee that consists of  
Ms. Padmini Khare Kaicker, Chairperson, Mr. Ranjit Shahani,  
Mr. Sumit Bose and Mr. Prashant Kumar. There has been no 
instance of non-acceptance of recommendation of Audit 
Committee by the Board.

	� The Board of directors has on November 10, 2020, adopted 
revised vigil mechanism in the form of Whistle Blower Policy 
to enable directors, employees and other stakeholders to make 
Protected Disclosures (as defined in the Policy) in relation 
to Alleged Wrongful Conduct (as defined in the Policy) to 
the Redressal Committee for evaluation and investigation in 
consultation with the Audit Committee. The Policy empowers  
the Redressal Committee to initiate inquiry and investigation if 
the issue raised constitutes bona fide Protected Disclosure made 
in good faith. The Redressal Committee is required to complete 
the investigation in a time bound manner. Where it concludes 
that Unethical and/or Improper Activity (as defined in the Policy) 
has been committed, it shall recommend, after consultation with  
the Audit Committee, to the management of the Company to take 
such disciplinary or corrective action as it or the Audit Committee 
deems fit. The Policy provides for access of whistle blower to  
the Chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional 
circumstances. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards 
of whistle blowers against any kind of victimisation or unfair 
treatment but also provides for taking stern disciplinary action 
against who abuses the protection so granted. This functioning 
of vigil mechanism will be periodically reviewed by the Audit 
Committee. The Company has posted the Whistle Blower Policy 
and the associated Complaint Response Plan Policy on its website 
www.jbpharma.com.

14.	 ANNUAL PERFORMACE EVALUATION

	� The Board of directors carried out formal annual evaluation of 
performance of the Board, its Committees and individual directors 
during 2021-22 in accordance with the manner specified by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and using 
evaluation criteria recommended by the NRC and approved by 

http://www.jbpharma.com
http://www.jbpharma.com
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	� Neither management of the Company has come across  
any instance of fraud during the year 2021-22 nor the auditors  
of the Company has reported any such instance to the Audit 
Committee.

20.	 LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

	� During the year, the Company has not given any loan or guarantee 
or made any investment attracting the provisions of Section 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, there is no information to be 
furnished pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 
2013.

21.	 COST RECORDS

	� The Company is required to maintain cost records as specified 
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and such accounts and records are 
duly made and maintained by the Company. The Company is 
further required to get such cost records audited by a cost auditor 
in accordance with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014 and furnish cost audit report received from the cost 
auditor to the Central Government within the prescribed time.  
The Company is in compliance with these provisions.

22.	 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

	� Ashish Bhatt & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company, carried out secretarial audit 
for the financial year 2021-22 as provided under Section 204 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under. The 
secretarial audit report given by the said auditor is annexed to 
this report as Schedule-I.

23.	 AUDITORS

	� The members at annual general meeting held on September 9, 
2021 has appointed Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, (having firm 
registration no. 117366W/W-100018) as statutory auditors of 
the Company until conclusion of the 49th annual general meeting 
of the Company at such remuneration as may be agreed by the 
Board of directors with the auditors.

24.  ESG (ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE)

We continue to embrace the triple bottom-line philosophy of 
People, Planet and Profits. During the year under review, we 
reaffirmed our commitment to ESG(Environment, Social and 
Governance) and have instituted a sustainable business strategy 
to positively impact the environment and society while also 
benefiting shareholders. ESG in today’s context is not just about 
goodwill and reputation but it can be used as a competitive edge 
at the marketplace. While as an organisation we have focused 
on all these areas in different aspects, we are committed to 
dedicating further resources and efforts towards this area. During 
the year under review, we undertook a detailed gap assessment 
analysis regarding our ESG parameters. Our gap assessment 
was based on benchmarks established by GRI ( Global Reporting 
Initiative) and the local ESG standards set by reputed institutions. 
As you are aware, GRI is the benchmark standard for most 

Fortune – 500 companies when reporting on ESG parameters. 
We have instituted various policies to strengthen the governance 
mechanism including ABAC, POSH etc. We have also ensured that 
our employees are trained on various governance mechanisms 
so that these policies are embraced by every employee in the 
organisation. We have introduced a framework that will help us 
monitor, measure and improve our environmental footprint; like 
water usage, waste and effluent generated, use of renewable 
energy sources, implementation of zero discharge norms across 
sites and instituting a strong HSE policy. We have instituted 
a sustainable business strategy which encompasses short-
term and medium-term goals for the organisation. Our efforts 
will continue to focus on increasing ESG standards within the 
organisation. We also plan to publish a sustainability report based 
on GRI standards. All these initiatives and efforts will ensure that 
we continue raise the bar every year regarding ESG standards.

25.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES AND CONFIRMATIONS

	� Board has to make further disclosures and provide confirmations, 
as required, as under:

	 •	� The Company has placed annual return referred to in sub-
section (3) of section 92 on its website www.jbpharma.com.

	 •	� No regulator or court or tribunal has passed, during the year, 
any significant or material order affecting the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future.

	 •	� The Company has complied with applicable Secretarial 
Standards specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India and approved by the Central Government under 
Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 •	� The Company has complied with the provisions relating to 
the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

26.	 HEALTH AND SAFETY

	� The Company continues to accord high priority to health and 
safety of employees and workmen at all manufacturing locations. 
Annual medical check-up of all employees at all sites was carried 
out. The Company also conducted safety training programmes 
and mock-drills for increasing disaster preparedness awareness 
among all employees at the plants. There was no casualty at any 
site during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ranjit Shahani
Chairman

Place : Mumbai
Date	  : May 26, 2022

http://www.jbpharma.com
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SCHEDULE-A

Highlights of performance of the subsidiary companies for the year 
ended on March 31, 2022

 (` in lakhs)

Particulars LLC Unique 
Pharmaceutical 

Laboratories, 
Russia

Biotech 
Laboratories 

(Pty.) Ltd., 
South Africa

Unique 
Pharmaceutical 

Laboratories
FZE, Dubai

Sales 7,187.77 28,940.75  Nil

Other operating 
income

 Nil 125.64  Nil

Other income  2,537.15 30.70  Nil

Total income 9,724.92  29,097.12  Nil

Profit before tax 329.33 1,959.03 (157.33)

Provision for 
current tax

31.09 534.25  Nil

Deferred tax  34.46 (6.90)  Nil

Earlier year tax (0.01)  Nil  Nil

Profit/(Loss) 
after tax

263.79 1,431.68 (157.33)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ranjit Shahani
Chairman

Place : Mumbai
Date	  : May 26, 2022

SCHEDULE–B

Company’s Policy on directors’ appointment

Policy Statement:

The following shall be followed/kept in view, to the extent possible and 
practicable while selecting any person for a position of a director of 
the Company.

(a)	� The appointment of any director should be such as to help 
maintain/achieve diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, 
perspective and gender in the Board of Directors.

(b)	� A candidate proposed for appointment as a director should be a 
person of integrity.

(c)	� A candidate proposed for appointment as independent director 
shall:

	 (i)	 be independent of management;

	 (ii)	� shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge 
in fields such as finance and financial advisory, law, 
management, sales, marketing, administration, corporate 
governance, taxation, regulatory affairs, drugs and medicine, 
technical operations and any other discipline related to the 
Company’s business;

	 (iii)	� be such that brings in appropriate balance of skills, 
experience and knowledge in the Board of Directors;

	 (iv)	� be willing to devote time for the affairs and activities of the 
Board and its Committee(s) and otherwise to enable the 
Board of Directors to discharge its functions and duties 
effectively; and

	 (v)	� satisfy criteria of independence as mentioned in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement from time 
to time.

(d)	� For independent directors, requisite professional qualification 
in the area of expertise is preferred. However, experience and 
expertise in a given field should be determining factor.

(e)	� A candidate proposed for position of executive director may 
be from the promoter group or outside. Such candidate should 
have enough experience or potentially fit for the executive 
responsibilities.

Observance of the Policy: Besides the Board of Directors, this Policy 
will also be followed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ranjit Shahani
Chairman

Place : Mumbai
Date	  : May 26, 2022
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SCHEDULE–D

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo

(A)	  Conservation of energy:

	 (i)	� Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The 
Company regularly takes measures for conservation of 
energy and thereby contain the rising energy cost. During 
the year, the Company (A) at Panoli & Ankleshwar unit(s)  
(i) installed 35 HP air compressor for night hours and 
holidays/ Week off run (ii) optimised operation of air 
compressors by reducing operating pressure (iii) installed 
auto tube cleaning system for TR chillers at Panoli  
(iv) Installation of condensate recovery unit and recovered 
high temperature (above 50 deg. C) condensate and 
optimised steam to fuel ration, and (B) at Daman unit  
(i) continued replacement of conventional lights by  
LED lights (ii) continued installation of high efficiency 
motors in AHUs, and (iii) usage of PNG in boilers.

	 (ii)	� The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate 
sources of energy: The Company installed 200 KVA solar 
power plant at Daman Unit, while it is in the process of 
purchase of electricity generated through wind & solar 
hybrid power to replace use of conventional energy at Panoli/
Ankleshwar units.

	 (iii)	� The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: 
During the year, the Company made capital investment on 
energy conservation equipment of about ` 37 lakhs at Panoli 
unit and ` 95 lakhs at Daman unit.

(B)	 Technology absorption:

	 (i)	� Efforts made towards technology absorption: The Company 
continued efforts for absorption of certain technologies 
developed in-house in relation to development of 
pharmaceutical formulations, drug delivery system and 
API. These technologies were absorbed in development of 
new formulations for developed markets and manufacture 
of validation batches, exhibit batches, scale up batches and 
commercialisation therefor. These technologies have been 
absorbed with the effort of in-house R&D.

 'hh( �Sgd admdǐsr cdqhudc khjd oqnctbs hloqnudldms+ bnrs 
reduction, product development or import substitution: 
The Company derived the following benefit as a result of 
technology absorption:

		  -	 Prior approval supplements for alternative API in ANDA
		  -	 Receipt of regulatory approvals
		  -	 Reduction in cost of materials and production
		  -	 Improvement in product yield and quality

	 (iii)	� The Company has not imported any technology during last 3 
ǐm`mbh`k xd`qr-

SCHEDULE– C

Salient features of Company’s policy on remuneration for the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees

•	� The objective of remuneration for executives and employees is to 
focus them on achieving objectives and improving performance, 
to motivate and retain them and to be able to attract qualified, 
talented and competent executives and employees to the Company.

•	� The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) 
shall endeavour to fix the base salaries (fixed salaries) for 
executive directors keeping in view practices prevailing in the 
industry and also variety of other factors such as experience, 
past performance, scope of responsibilities and complexity of 
functions. The annual increments in their base salaries shall be 
determined keeping in view performance of the Company and 
shall also reflect appropriate performance benchmarks.

•	� Non-Executive directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration 
by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and 
Committee(s) thereof or any other purpose whatsoever as may be 
decided by the Board from time to time within the maximum limit 
prescribed under the Rules made under the Companies Act. Subject 
to the provisions of the Act, Non-Executive directors may also 
receive profit related commission as may be decided by the Board.

•	� The Committee shall endeavour to fix the base salaries (fixed 
salaries) for Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior 
Management Personnel (SMP) at the time of appointment 
keeping in view practices prevailing in the industry and also 
variety of other factors such as qualifications, experience, scope 
of responsibilities, complexity of functions and geographical area. 
The annual increments in the base salaries of KMP and SMP shall 
be determined by the Company management keeping in view 
performance of the Company and performance of the employees.

•	� The Company management shall endeavour to fix the base salaries 
(fixed salaries) for other employees keeping in view qualifications, 
experience, scope of responsibilities, complexity of functions, 
geographical location and practices prevailing in the industry. The 
Company management shall also evaluate and explore for other 
employees in general or employees in any specific department 
or function an element of variable pay in the form of incentive, 
bonus etc. keeping in view short term and long term objectives 
of the Company. The Company management shall determine 
annual increments of other employees based on performance of 
employees, performance of the Company and practices prevailing 
in the industry.

•	� While fixing the remuneration, the Committee shall ensure that 
the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and 
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors, KMP and 
SMP of the quality required to run the Company successfully. 
Further, the Committee or the Company management, as the case 
may be, shall endeavour to ensure that the remuneration and/or 
annual increment determined is affordable to the Company and 
competitive with due consideration to industry trends and the 
Company’s own position, consistently followed practices.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai 	 Ranjit Shahani
Date	  : May 26, 2022	  Chairman
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3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website 
of the Company

	� The composition of CSR Committee is disclosed at https://jbpharma.com/download/composition-of-csr-committee/?wpdmdl=5079&refresh=6
295a00ff39211653973007 . CSR Policy is disclosed at https://jbpharma.com/download/corporate-social-responsibility-policy/?wpdmdl=5487
&refresh=62cbdeb0a36471657527984 and CSR project approved by the Board is disclosed at https://jbpharma.com/download/csr-projects-fy-
2021-22/?wpdmdl=5731&refresh=6295a0100980c1653973008 .

4.	� Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)

	 Not Applicable.

5.	� Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Qtkdr+ 1/03 `mc `lntms qdpthqdc enq rds nee enq sgd ǐm`mbh`k xd`q+ he `mx

Sr. 
No.

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
oqdbdchmf ǐm`mbh`k xd`qr '` in lakhs)

Amount required to be set-off
enq sgd ǐm`mbh`k xd`q+ he `mx '` in lakhs)

1 2020-21 7.40 Nil

5- @udq`fd mds oqnǐs ne sgd bnlo`mx `r odq rdbshnm 024'4(9 ` 34,681.15 lakhs

(` in lakhs)

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5)  ` 693.62

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years  Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any  Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)  ` 693.62

8.	 '`( BRQ `lntms rodms nq tmrodms enq sgd ǐm`mbh`k xd`q9

Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year 
2021-22 (` in lakhs)

Amount Unspent (` in lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6)

@lntms sq`mredqqdc sn `mx etmc rodbhǐdc tmcdq 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

695.09 NA NA NA NA NA

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

https://jbpharma.com/download/composition-of-csr-committee/?wpdmdl=5079&refresh=6295a00ff39211653973007
https://jbpharma.com/download/composition-of-csr-committee/?wpdmdl=5079&refresh=6295a00ff39211653973007
https://jbpharma.com/download/csr-projects-fy-2021-22/?wpdmdl=5731&refresh=6295a0100980c1653973008
https://jbpharma.com/download/csr-projects-fy-2021-22/?wpdmdl=5731&refresh=6295a0100980c1653973008
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr.
No.

Name of the Project Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
Schedule VII 
to the Act

Local 
area
(Yes/ 
No).

Location of the project Amount 
spent 
for the 
project

(` in 
lakhs)

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Direct
(Yes/ No)

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency

State District Name CSR
Registration

number

9. Contribution to 
Ankleshwar Industrial 
Development Society, 
towards funding of 
furniture, fittings and 
equipment at Emergency 
Response Unit and ICU at 
Shreemati Jayaben Mody 
Hospital at Ankleshwar, 
Bharuch, Gujarat.

Promoting 
healthcare 
including 
preventive 
healthcare (i)

Yes Gujarat Bharuch 25.00 Yes NA NA

10. Contribution to Liver 
Foundation, West Bengal, 
towards procurement of 
Fibroscan machine for use 
at Indian institute of Liver 
and Digestive sciences 
(IILDS), for affordable 
treatment of needy 
section of the society.

Promoting 
healthcare 
including 
preventive 
healthcare (i)

No West Bengal South 24 
Parganas

70.00 Yes NA NA

11. Contribution to Rajveer 
Knowledge Foundation 
towards construction of 
a new hospital building 
at Talegaon to cater to 
healthcare needs of poor 
and needy people of Pune 
District.

Promoting 
healthcare 
including 
preventive 
healthcare (i)

No Maharashtra Pune 35.00 Yes NA NA

12. Treatment of poor and 
needy children suffering 
from Growth Hormone 
Deficiency (GHD), at All 
India Institute of Medical 
Sciences (AIIMS), New 
Delhi.

Promoting 
healthcare 
including 
preventive 
healthcare (i)

No Delhi Delhi 128.00 Yes NA NA

13. Health improvement 
of local residents at 
Dori Kadaiya suffering 
from anaemia, 
tuberculosis, leprosy, 
HIV and malnutrition 
through distribution of 
nutrition kit under public 
health initiative of the 
Department of Health & 
Family Welfare, Dadra & 
Nagar Haveli and Daman 
& Diu.

Promoting 
healthcare 
including 
preventive 
healthcare (i)

Yes Union 
Territory 

of Dadra & 
Nagar Haveli 
and Daman 

& Diu

Daman 0.49 Yes NA NA

TOTAL 643.48
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: ` 34.00 lakhs

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year: (8b+8c+8d+8e) ` 695.09 lakhs

(g)	 Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sr. No. Particular Amount (` in lakhs)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 693.62

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 695.09

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1.47

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1.47

8- '`( Cds`hkr ne Tmrodms BRQ `lntms enq sgd oqdbdchmf sgqdd ǐm`mbh`k xd`qr9

Sr.
No.

Preceding
Financial

Year

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR
Account under
section 135 (6)
(in `)

Amount spent
in the
reporting
Financial Year
(in `)

@lntms sq`mredqqdc sn `mx etmc rodbhǐdc tmcdq 
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any.

Amount remaining to
be spent in
succeeding
ǐm`mbh`k
years. (in `)

Name of the 
Fund

Amount (in `) Date of 
transfer

1. 2020-21 Not Applicable

2. 2019-20 Not Applicable

3. 2018-19 Not Applicable

	 'a( Cds`hkr ne BRQ `lntms rodms hm sgd ǐm`mbh`k xd`q enq nmfnhmf oqnidbsr ne sgd oqdbdchmf ǐm`mbh`k xd`q'r(9 Not Applicable

10.	� In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the 
ǐm`mbh`k xd`q9

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)  Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their 
address etc.

 Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset)

Not Applicable

00- �Rodbhex sgd qd`rnm'r(+ he sgd bnlo`mx g`r e`hkdc sn rodmc svn odq bdms ne sgd `udq`fd mds oqnǐs `r odq rdbshnm 024'4(9

	 Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai			    		  	 Nikhil Chopra
Date	  : May 26, 2022			   Bghde Dwdbtshud Neǐbdq `mc Vgnkd,Shld Chqdbsnq

Place : Mumbai		   Ranjit Shahani
Date	  : May 26, 2022 	  						      	  Chairman, CSR Committee
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SCHEDULE-G

Information as per Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 
on March 31, 2022.

Statement of name of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and name of every employee who was in receipt of remuneration of 
oqdrbqhadc `lntms ctqhmf sgd ǐm`mbh`k xd`q-

(a) Name & age (years) (b) Designation (c) Gross remuneration received (`( 'c( Pt`khǐb`shnm'r( % dwodqhdmbd 'xd`qr( 'd( C`sd ne bnlldmbdldms ne 
employment (f) Last employment held before joining the Company

Employed for full year:

(a) Bang Parmeshwar (54) (b) Vice President-Works (c) 14,522,790 (d) M. Pharm, D.B.M. (28) (e) 28.08.2003 (f) Ankur Drugs & Pharma Ltd.-General 
Manager (a) Bharadwaj Sridhar (55) (b) Vice President-HR (c) 10,350,316 (d) MBA, PGDBA (31) (e) 15.09.2016 (f) Cadila Healthcare Limited- Vice 
President-HR (a) Chopra Nikhil (48) (b) Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director (c) 59,385,768 (d) M.Sc. (Chemistry) (25) (e) 5.10.2020 
(f) Cipla Ltd.- CEO, India Business (a) Dhanani Bharat (53) (b) Vice President (Operation) (c) 13,979,952 (d) B. Pharm (28) (e) 12.10.2010 (f) Famycare 
Ltd.- General Manager (a) D’Souza Jason (47) (b) Vice President - Investor Relations (c) 11,919,631 (d) MBA Finance (27) (e) 23.02.2021 (f) Glenmark 
Pharmaceuticals Ltd.- Senior Vice President- Corporate Strategy & Investor Relations (a) Joshi M. D. (Dr.) (58) (b) President-Global Regulatory 
Management (c) 23,531,879 (d) M.Sc., Ph.D. (36) (e) 07.12.1989 (f) Adonis Labs Private Limited-Executive- Quality Assurance (a) Khanna Kunal (41) 
(b) President – Operations (c) 22,150,318 (d) MBA / PGDM Marketing (16) (e) 31.08.2020 (f) Cipla Ltd.- Vice President- India Business (a) Rajhans 
Sujay (Dr.) (45) (b) President-R&D (c) 10,099,545 (d) M.Pharm, Ph.D. (18) (e) 30.03.2021 (f) Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited-General Manager 
(a) Rathore Dilip Singh (45) (b) President- Domestic Business (c) 21,323,811 (d) M.Sc. (20) (e) 28.01.2021 (f) Cipla Limited- Sr. Vice President - India 
Business Marketing (a) Rathod Sandeep (44) (b) Vice President - Legal (c) 12,844,726 (d) LLM (16) (e) 02.03.2021 (f) USV Private Limited- Vice 
President-Legal (a) Sachdev Bhushan (52) (b) Vice President-Supply Chain Management (c) 17,709,941 (d) Diploma in Mechanical Engineering, 
Graduate Diploma in Materials Management (24) (e) 13.06.2005 (f) Balsara Home Products Limited – Head Supply Chain & Projects (a) Sachi Savya 
(59) (b) President (Domestic Business Unit) (c) 18,034,152 (d) LLB, Diploma in Business Management (35) (e) 17.02.2012 (f) Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories 
Ltd.- Director-Marketing (a) Singh P.K. (58) (b) President (Global Business) (c) 33,436,924 (d) M. Pharm (35) (e) 01.12.2001 (f) Coral Laboratories-
General Manager (International Division).

Employed for part of the year:

(a) ^Bhatt Vijay (52) (b) Chief Financial Officer (c) 7,819,192 (d) B. Com, Chartered Accountant (29) (e) 21.01.2015 (f) MIRC Electronics Ltd.-Head 
Finance & Accounts (a) Bendre Vikrant (45) (b) Assistant Vice President (c) 3,822,092 (d) MBA (22) (e) 18.02.2022 (f) Jubilant Generics Limited –
Senior Director (a) ^^Kataria Lakshay (43) (b) Chief Financial Officer (c) 13,354,117 (d) Chartered Accountant (20) (e) 04.10.2021 (f) Akzonobel India 
Limited- Chief Financial Officer.

Notes: (1) The nature of employment of the above employees is/was contractual in nature. The other terms and conditions of each of the above are/
were as per the contract/letter of appointment and rules of the Company. (2) The amount of remuneration does not include gratuity received as the 
same was paid by the Gratuity Trust of the Company.

^ ceased to be Chief Financial Officer with effect from August 31, 2021

^^ appointed as Chief Financial Officer with effect from October 4, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ranjit Shahani
Chairman

Place : Mumbai
Date	  : May 26, 2022
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SCHEDULE-H

Disclosure of details in respect of Company’s Employee Stock Option Plan

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Exercise price wise details

(a) Options granted:

Performance based options granted 1,137,901 434,860

Time based options granted 758,601 479,359

Total options granted 1,896,502 914,219

(b) Options vested Nil Nil

(c) Options exercised Nil Nil

(d) Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option Not applicable Not applicable

(e) Options lapsed Nil 4,637

(f) the exercise price (`) 745 1,200

(g) Variation of terms of options Not applicable Not applicable

(h) Money realized by exercise of options Not applicable Not applicable

(i) Total number of options in force 1,896,502 909,582

(j) Employee wise details of options granted As per Table-1, Table-2 and Table-3 below

Table-1: Employee wise details of options granted to key managerial personnel

Sr. 
No.

Name Designation Number of options granted during the year Exercise price for 
the Options (`)Time based Performance based

(i) Mr. Nikhil Chopra Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director 618,257 927,385 745

(ii) Mr. Lakshay Kataria Chief Financial Officer 56,000 84,000 1,200

(iii) Mr. Sandeep Phadnis Vice President-Secretarial and Company Secretary 11,592 - 1,200

Table-2: Details of employees who received a grant of options in 2021-22 amounting to 5% or more of options granted during that year

Sr. 
No.

Name Designation Number of options granted during the year Exercise price for 
the Options (`)Time based Performance based

(i) Mr. Nikhil Chopra Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director 618,257 927,385 745

(ii) Mr. Kunal Khanna President – Operations 70,172 105,258 745

(iii) Mr. Dilip Singh Rathore President-Domestic Business 70,172 105,258 745

S`akd,29 Cds`hkr ne sgd hcdmshǐdc dloknxdd vgn v`r fq`msdc noshnmr hm 1/10,11 dpt`k sn nq dwbddchmf 0$ ne sgd hrrtdc b`ohs`k ne sgd Bnlo`mx `s 
the time of grant

Sr. 
No.

Name Designation Number of options granted during the year Exercise price for 
the Options (`)Time based Performance based

(i) Mr. Nikhil Chopra Chief Executive Officer and Whole-Time Director 618,257 927,385 745

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai									          Ranjit Shahani
Date	  : May 26, 2022 	  Chairman
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ANNEXURE I
List of applicable laws to the Company

Under the Major Group and Head
1.	 Drugs & Cosmetics Act, 1940;
2.	 Drugs (Prices Control) Order 2013;
3.	 Factories Act, 1948;
4.	 Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951;
5.	� Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company either on its payroll or on contractual basis 

as related to wages, gratuity, provident fund, ESIC, compensation etc.;
6.	 Acts relating to prevention and control of pollution;
7.	 Acts relating to Environmental protection;
8.	 Acts relating to direct tax and indirect tax;
9.	 Labour Welfare Act of respective States;
10.	 Trade Marks Act 1999; and
11.	  The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

For Ashish Bhatt & Associates

Ashish Bhatt
Practicing Company Secretary

							        FCS No: 4650
Place : Thane		   C.P. No. 2956
Date	  : May 26, 2022 		  UDIN: F004650D000391707

ANNEXURE -II

To,
The Members,
J. B. Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Limited
Neelam Centre, B wing, 4th Floor, Hind Cycle Road,
Worli, Mumbai 400030.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	� Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	� We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents 
of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of accounts of the Company.

4.	� Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 
events etc.

5.	� The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management.  
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	� The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ashish Bhatt & Associates

Ashish Bhatt
Practicing Company Secretary

							        FCS No: 4650
Place : Thane		   C.P. No. 2956
Date	  : May 26, 2022 		  UDIN: F004650D000391707
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fast-growing Probiotics segment and the niche Heart Failure 
segment. The brands acquired from Sanzyme offers entry into 
the nascent opportunity of probiotics in India which is witnessing 
double digit growth.  The portfolio also offers geographic & 
distribution synergies, along with prescriber overlap. Sporlac, 
which is among the top 3 brands in the probiotics segment has 
significant opportunity to grow through line -extensions. 

Azmarda marks the Company’s expansion in the cardiac 
segment with its entry into the niche fast growing heart failure 
segment. Sacubitril+Valsartan which belongs to the ARNI class 
is the highest growth segment in cardiology, with a 3-year CAGR  
of 35%+. There is significant untapped potential as less than 
25% of the estimated 15-20 Mn Heart Failure patients are on this 
therapy.

International business:

�The Company operates distinct operating models across multiple 
international businesses with direct presence in Russia and South 
Africa as well as distributor relationships in the U.S. and a large number 
of markets across Asia, Africa and Latin America. The Company also 
has a leading global position in the contract manufacturing (CMO) 
market driven by marquee client relationships. These businesses 
are backed by wide-ranging manufacturing capabilities that offer 
substantial headroom for growth. Overall, the Company’s international 
business derives strong visibility from its wide geographical presence, 
increased focus on ANDA filings, new product introductions in  
home markets of Russia and South Africa, focus on contract 
manufacturing business backed by state-of-the-art manufacturing 
facilities that are approved by regulatory bodies such as US FDA, TGA 
Australia, EU GMP, SAHPRA South Africa, MoH-Russia, Ukraine (PICs), 
MoH Japan with a wide range of products across injectables, solids 
and semi-solids.

During the year under review, the Company’s international business 
recorded revenue of INR 1,236 crores as compared to INR 1,127 
crore recording growth of 10 %.  The Company’s overall International 
formulations business during the year under review was INR 892 
crores; the CMO business was INR 253 crores and the API business 
was INR 91 crores.

The South Africa business continues to record growth in both public 
and private markets and is now ranked among the top 15 companies 
in the country. The Russia/CIS region continue to see stable demand 
despite being affected by currency fluctuations and volatility. The ROW 
markets bounced back in the fourth quarter and thus delivered good 
overall growth for the year under review. In the US, the key molecules 
viz. Glipizide and Carbamazepine, continue to retain market share. 
We continue to progress on ANDA filings with focus on backward 
integration. The cost-plus business model in the US will ensure that 
our capital investment is limited, and our returns are sustainable. The 
supply chain disruptions and higher freight costs remain a challenge. 
Freight costs increased significantly for all key markets and shipments 
were affected for most of the year under review.

The CMO business provides a great opportunity for growth. The 
organsiation is currently ranked among the top 5 manufacturers of 
lozenges globally and boasts of some big consumer health/ FMCG 
companies. The CMO business recorded good growth in the year under 
review.

OUTLOOK

The global macro-economic conditions remain fragile and inflation is 
on the rise across the world. We have seen significant costs escalation 
during the year under review. Despite the challenging operating 
environment, we remain positive about the demand outlook. The India 
business will continue to remain market-beating and we will continue 
to strengthen our pillar brands.  We also intent to scale up the recently 
acquired brands. On the international business we expect growth in 
demand. However, the geo-political & economic scenario across the 
world is evolving and this could lead to some headwinds. We continue 
to focus on building our product portfolio, building new customer 
relationships and leverage our manufacturing capability to mitigate 
the headwinds.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The Company does not perceive any risks or concerns other than those 
that are common to the industry such as regulatory risks, exchange 
risk, cyber risks and other commercial and business-related risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls, which 
ensures that its assets are protected from loss and unauthorized 
use as well as business affairs are carried out in accordance with 
established procedures. These systems of internal controls also ensure 
that transactions are carried out based on authority and are recorded 
and reported in line with generally accepted accounting principles. The 
Company also has a system of regular internal audit carried out by 
competent professionals retained by the Company. The internal audit 
programme is approved by the Audit Committee, and findings of the 
internal auditor are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board 
at regular interval. The internal control system is adequate keeping in 
view size and nature of the Company’s business.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO 
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Consolidated financial performance of the Company with respect to 
operational performance for the financial year ended on March 31, 
2022 is as under:

Parameter 2021-22
(INR in crores)

2020-21
(INR in crores)

Growth 
(%)

Revenue from operations 2,424.24 2,042.52 18.69

Total income 2,463.47 2,154.90 14.32

Reported EBITDA 543.46 560.41 (3.12)

Operating EBITDA
(excl ESOP Cost)

606.11 560.41 8.16 

Profit before tax and 
exceptional item

504.90 596.89 (15.41)

Profit after tax 386.04 448.52 (13.93)

During the year under review, the Company recorded revenue growth 
of 19%. The domestic business grew by 32 % while the international 
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business grew at 10%  for the year under review. While the reported 
EBITDA declined by 3 % to INR 543.46 crores , the Operating EBITDA (excl 
ESOP cost) increased by 8 % to INR 606.12 crores despite significant 
cost pressures during the year under review. PAT development was 
impacted due to non-cash ESOP charge, lower treasury income and 
one-off other income in the prior financial year.

Standalone financial performance of the Company for the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2022 is as under:

Parameter 2021-22
(INR in crores)

2020-21
(INR in crores)

Growth 
(%)

Revenue from 
operations

2,189.88 1,892.00 15.74

Total income 2,228.49 2,003.88 11.21

Reported EBITDA 508.91 556.37 (8.53)

Operating EBITDA
(excl ESOP Cost)

569.84 556.37 2.42

Profit before tax and 
exceptional item

471.29 593.71 (25.98)

Profit after tax 361.00 447.08 (19.25)

HUMAN RESOURCE

There has been no material development on human resources and 
industrial relations front. The relationship with employees and workers 
continued to be cordial at all levels. As on March 2022, permanent 
employees’ strength and temporary employees’ strength was 4,340 
and 680 respectively.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The key financial ratio for 2021-22 and changes therein as compared 
to the immediately preceding financial year along with detailed 
explanation in cases where the change is 25% or more is as under:

a)	 Debtors Turnover ratio: Net Sales/Average account receivables 

	 This ratio for the year was 5.13 (times) as against 5.56 (times) in 
the previous year.

b)	 Inventory Turnover ratio: Cost of Goods sold/Average inventory

	 This ratio for the year was 2.23 (times) as against 2.26 (times) in 
the previous year.

c)	 Interest Coverage ratio: EBITDA/Interest Payment

	 This ratio for the year was 106.13 (times) as against 77.39 (times) 
in the previous year. The Company has a healthy interest coverage 
ratio in absolute terms. The coverage increased by 28.74% on 
account of finance costs reducing from 7.24 crores to 5.12 crores. 

d)	 Current Ratio: Current assets/Current liabilities

	 This ratio for the year was 3.32 (times) as against 4.50 (times) in 
the previous year. This ratio reduced due to redemption of mutual 
fund investments for acquisitions of trademarks during the year.

e)	 Debt-Equity ratio: Borrowings/Total Shareholders’ Equity

	 This ratio for the year was 0.026:1 (times) as against 
0.025:1(times) in the previous year.

f)	 Operating Profit Margin: EBITDA (excl ESOP charge)/Sales

	 Operating profit margin for the year was 25.00% as against 
27.43% in the previous year The operating margin was lower due 
to escalation in inputs costs, freight costs and normalisation of 
operating expenses post pandemic.

g)	 Net Profit Margin: Net Profit/Net Sales

	 Net profit margin for the year was 15.92% as against 21.96% in 
the previous year. This ratio declined by 6.04% due to the ESOP 
charges, lower treasury income and one-off other income in the 
prior financial year.

�The ratio for the previous year has been re-stated wherever necessary 
to make it comparable to current year calculation.

RETURN ON EQUITY

Return on Equity during the year was 15.33% as against 18.56% in 
the previous year The ROE was impacted due to ESOP charges, lower 
treasury income and one-off other income in the prior financial year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

					      Ranjit Shahani
	 Chairman

Place : Mumbai
Date	  : May 26, 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(i)	 (a)	 Composition, Attendance and Other Directorships:

Name of the director Category No. of
board meetings 

attended

Attendance
at last AGM

No. of other 
director-
ship(s)

Other committee position

Member Chairman

Independent Yes

Independent Yes 4

Independent Yes 4 – 4

8 Yes * * *

Yes –

9 Yes * * *

9 – –

Yes – – –

	 (b)	 Directorships in other listed entities:

Name of the director Category of directorship Name of listed entity Security Listed

Independent

Independent





https://jbpharma.com/download/details-of-familiarisation-programme-for-directors-2/?wpdmdl=5067&refresh=62b298de47efa1655871710
https://jbpharma.com/download/details-of-familiarisation-programme-for-directors-2/?wpdmdl=5067&refresh=62b298de47efa1655871710
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Composition and attendance at the meeting

Name of the member Position held Category Meeting attended

Chairperson Independent Director

–

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

(i)	 Remuneration of Non-executive directors

 

Name of the director Sitting Fees (`) Commission (`)

vis-à-vis the 





http://www.jbpharma.com
http://www.jbpharma.com
mailto:investorquery@datamaticsbpm.com


mailto:secretarial@jbpharma.com
http://www.jbpharma.com


http://www.jbpharma.com
https://jbpharma.com/download/policy-for-determining-material-subsidiaries-2/?wpdmdl=5464&refresh=62b94739a0c5a1656309561
https://jbpharma.com/download/policy-for-determining-material-subsidiaries-2/?wpdmdl=5464&refresh=62b94739a0c5a1656309561
http://www.jbpharma.com
https://jbpharma.com/download/policy-on-materiality-and-dealing-with-related-party-transactions/?wpdmdl=5465&refresh=62b94739818501656309561
https://jbpharma.com/download/policy-on-materiality-and-dealing-with-related-party-transactions/?wpdmdl=5465&refresh=62b94739818501656309561
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE REPORT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

QUARTERLY COMPLIANCE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

DISCLOSURES ON WEBSITE

inter alia

SHARES SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

http://www.jbcpl.com










http://www.jbcpl.com


http://www.jbpharma.com
mailto:secretarial@jbpharma.com


https://jbpharma.com/download/fy-2019-2020-14/?wpdmdl=1171&refresh=62a9cfebf38611655295979
https://jbpharma.com/download/fy-2019-2020-14/?wpdmdl=1171&refresh=62a9cfebf38611655295979
https://jbpharma.com/download/anti-bribery-and-anti-corruption-policy-2/?wpdmdl=5460&refresh=62a9cfebd4ca81655295979
https://jbpharma.com/download/anti-bribery-and-anti-corruption-policy-2/?wpdmdl=5460&refresh=62a9cfebd4ca81655295979
https://jbpharma.com/download/anti-bribery-and-anti-corruption-policy-2/?wpdmdl=5460&refresh=62a9cfebd4ca81655295979
https://jbpharma.com/download/business-responsibility-policy-2/?wpdmdl=5461&refresh=62a9cfebcaf5d1655295979
https://jbpharma.com/download/business-responsibility-policy-2/?wpdmdl=5461&refresh=62a9cfebcaf5d1655295979
https://jbpharma.com/download/business-responsibility-policy-2/?wpdmdl=5461&refresh=62a9cfebcaf5d1655295979
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No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

8 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
9 Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanism related to the Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3.	 Governance related to BR

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1: Ethics, Transparency and accountability

1.	� Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover 
only the company?

	� Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs /Others?

2.	� How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past 
financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily resolved by 
the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words 
or so.

Principle 2: Product safety and sustainability

1.	� List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has 
incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or 
opportunities.

2.	� Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable 
sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, what percentage 
of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company also has approved vendors for transportation of 

3.	� Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services 
from local & small producers, including communities surrounding 
their place of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to improve 
their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

4.	� Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and 
waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products and 
waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Principle 3: Employee well-being

1.	 Please indicate the total number of employees.

https://jbpharma.com/download/business-responsibility-report-2021-22/?wpdmdl=6063&refresh=62d550deac49b1658147038
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3.	 Does the company identify and assess potential environmental 
risks?

4.	 Does the company have any project related to Clean Development 
Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. 
Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?

5.	� Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on – clean 
technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc. Y/N. If yes, 
please give hyperlink for web page etc.

6.	 Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the 
permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year 
being reported?

7.	 Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB 
which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as on end of 
Financial Year.

Principle 7: Policy Advocacy

1.	 Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or 
association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your 
business deals with.

2.	 Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the 
advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/No; if yes 
specify the broad areas.

Principle 8: Inclusive growth and equitable development

1.	 Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/
projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If yes 
details thereof.

2.	 Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house 
team/own foundation/external NGO/government structures/any 
other organization?

3.	 Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

4.	 What is your company’s direct contribution to community 
development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the 
projects undertaken.

Company spent ̀

5.	� Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development 
initiative is successfully adopted by the community? Please 
explain in 50 words, or so.

Principle 9: Customer value

1.	 What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are 
pending as on the end of financial year.

2.	 Does the company display product information on the product 
label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws? Yes/
No/N.A. /Remarks (additional information)
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3.	 Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company 
regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising and/or 
anti-competitive behavior during the last five years and pending 
as on end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, in about 
50 words or so.

4.	 Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer 
satisfaction trends?

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ranjit Shahani
Chairman
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(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 UNDER ‘REPORT ON 
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS’ SECTION 
OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF J.B. CHEMICALS 
AND PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED OF EVEN DATE)

(i)	 In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment:

	 (a)	 (I)	� The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-
in progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

		  (II)	� The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	� The Company has a program of verification of property, 
plant and equipment, capital work-in progress and right-of-
use assets to cover all the items once every 2 years which, 
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for 
verification during the year, were physically verified by the 
Management during the year. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	� Based on our examination of the registered sale deed / 
transfer deed /conveyance deed provided to us, we report 
that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other 
than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee 
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in 
property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the 
Company as at the balance sheet date

	 (d)	� The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible 
assets during the year.

	 (e)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending 
against the company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)	 In respect of the Company’s Inventories:

	 (a)	� The inventories, except for goods in transit, were physically 
verified during the year by the Management at reasonable 
intervals. In our opinion and based on information and 
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. 
In respect of goods in transit, the goods have been received 
subsequent to the year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more 
in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed 

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
on such physical verification of inventories when compared 
with books of account.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during 
the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. In our opinion and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, the statements 
comprising stock statements and book debt statements filed 
by the Company with such banks or financial institutions 
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of 
the Company of the respective quarters and no material 
discrepancies have been observed.

(iii)	� The Company has not made any investments in, provided any 
guarantee or security, and granted any loans or advances in the 
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and 
hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)	� The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 
of the Act in respect of making investments. The Company has 
not granted any loans covered under Section 185 and Section 186 
of the Act and has also not provided guarantees and securities 
covered under Section 186 of the Act.

(v)	� The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are 
deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(vi)	� The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the 
Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act. We have 
broadly reviewed the cost records maintained during the year 
by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, and 
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records 
have been made and maintained by the company. We have, 
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with 
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, in 
respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	� The Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 
duty of Custom and corresponding cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

	 (b)	� There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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	 (xiv)	(a)	� In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and the 
nature of its business.

		  (b)	� We have considered, the internal audit reports for the 
year under audit, issued to the company during the 
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and 
extent of our audit procedures.

	 (xv)	� In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, during the year the Company has 
not entered any non-cash transactions with its Directors or 
persons connected to its Directors and hence provisions of 
section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

	 (xvi)	(a)	� The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the 
Order is not applicable.

		  (b)	� The Group does not have any Core Investment Company 
(CIC) as part of the Group and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (xvii)�The Company has not incurred cash losses during the 
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year.

	 (xviii)�There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of 
the Company during the year.

	 (xix)	� On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates 
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors 
and Management plans and based on our examination of 
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 

come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state 
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due.

	 (xx)	� The Company has fully spent the required amount towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there are no 
unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a 
Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or 
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for 
the year.

    For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
            Chartered Accountants

                                                              (Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/
W-100018) 

Rajesh K. Hiranandani 
Partner

(Membership No.36920)
UDIN: 22036920AJQKSU9784 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  May 26, 2022
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
for the year ended March 31, 2022

(`  in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  47,129.27  59,370.80 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense  7,128.21  6,735.50 
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net)  98.04  (605.68)
Interest expense  391.32  689.35 
Net (gain)/loss on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment  (226.10)  (1,868.30)
Net gain on sale of current investments carried at fair value through 
profit or loss

 (3,522.97)  (1,000.81)

Profit on sale of product registration along with its marketing 
authorisation and trademark

 –  (3,368.66)

Fair value loss/(gain) on financial instruments at fair value through profit 
or loss

 18.67  (4,054.22)

Interest income  (48.32)  (141.19)
Dividend income  (0.50)  (0.50)
Government grant  (171.98)  (165.66)
Re-measurement of defined benefits plan  9.54  (1,669.97)
Sundry balances written back  (39.81)  (223.09)
Share based payment expense  6,092.91  –   
Discontinuance of lease assets  (14.22)  (7.19)
Allowances for credit losses  –  39.47 

 9,714.79  (5,640.95)
Operating profit before working capital changes  56,844.06  53,729.85 
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade and other receivables  (26,927.81)  (5,331.50)
Increase in inventories  (7,087.16)  (4,418.32)
Increase in trade payables and other liabilities  4,593.04  3,604.77 

 (29,421.93)  (6,145.05)
Cash generated from operations  27,422.13  47,584.80 
Income taxes paid (including tax deducted at source)  (12,712.03)  (14,041.31)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities  14,710.10  33,543.49 
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (refer note 2 below)  (6,129.07)  (4,730.49)
Purchase of intangible assets (including intangible asset under 
development)

 (64,305.91)  – 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  764.25  2,641.44 
Proceeds from sale of product registration along with its marketing 
authorisation and trademark

 –  2,156.75 

Payment for acquisition of a business undertaking on slump sale basis  –  (850.00)
Purchase of current investments  (50,847.46)  (54,097.97)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 120,867.92  31,691.35 



83Standalone Financial Statements

Corporate Overview Statutory Report Standalone
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Financial Statements

(`  in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
Change in other bank balances  18.24  (22.60)
Interest received  49.07  143.30 
Dividend received  0.50  0.50 
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities  417.54  (23,067.72)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/(repayment) from current borrowings (net)  (32.13)  32.22 
Interest paid  (240.74)  (633.95)
Dividend paid  (12,756.30)  (7,324.02)
Repayment of lease liabilities  (756.09)  (763.95)
Net cash flow used in financing activities  (13,785.26)  (8,689.70)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  1,342.38  1,786.07 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year*  2,426.29  636.67 
Exchange difference on restatement of foreign currency cash and 
cash equivalents

 0.10  3.55 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*  3,768.77  2,426.29 

*Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following

(`  in lakhs)

Particulars As at  March 31, 2022 As at  March 31,2021
Balances with banks  2,287.22  2,170.78 
Cheques on hand  5.11  243.16 
Cash on hand  8.60  12.35 
Remittance in transit  1,467.84  - 
Cash and cash equivalents  3,768.77  2,426.29 

Note: 

1.	� The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7-Statement 
of Cash Flows.

2.	� Purchase of property, plant and equipment represents additions to property, plant and equipment, adjusted for movement of capital work 
in progress, capital advances and capital creditors during the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements (Note 1-60).

As per our report of even date	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	 Nikhil Chopra	 Prashant Kumar
Chartered Accountants                     	 Chief Executive Officer & Whole-Time Director	 Director
					     DIN - 07220097	 DIN - 08342577
					   
Rajesh K. Hiranandani	 Lakshay Kataria	 Sandeep Phadnis
Partner                                       	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai		  Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 26, 2022	 Date  : May 26, 2022
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Income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and 
will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 
in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised 
in the Profit and Loss statement in the period of a plan 
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the 
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liabilities or assets. Defined benefit 
costs are categorised as follows:

			   •	� Service Cost (including current service cost, 
past service cost, as well as gains or losses on 
curtailments and settlements);

			   •	 Net interest expense or income; and

			   •	� Re-measurement (comprising actuarial gains and 
losses)

		�	�   The Company presents the first two components defined 
benefit cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
line items “Employee Benefits Expenses” and “Finance 
Cost”, respectively. Curtailment gain and losses are 
accounted for as past service cost.

			�   The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the 
Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus 
in the Company’s defined benefit plan. Any surplus 
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present 
value of any economic benefits available in the 
form of refunds from the plan or reduction in future 
contributions to the plan.

		   (iii)	Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Plans:

			�   Liability, in respect of compensated absences becoming 
due or expected to be availed within one year from 
the reporting date, is recognised on the basis of 
undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be 
paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed 
by the employees. Liability, in respect of compensated 
absences becoming due or expected to be availed more 
than one year after the reporting date, is estimated on 
the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an 
independent actuary using the projected unit credit 
method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are 
immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and are not deferred.

2.7.	 Share-Based Payments:

	 Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment Transactions:

	� The Company has set up Employee Stock Options Scheme in 
the nature of equity-settled share based remuneration for its 
eligible employees and eligible employee(s) of its wholly owned 
subsidiaries.

	� All services received in exchange for the grant of the options are 
measured at their fair value on the grant date and is recognised as 
an employee expense, in the profit or loss, with a corresponding 
increase in equity, over the period that the employees become 

unconditionally entitled to the options. The increase in equity 
recognised in connection with share-based payment transaction 
is presented as a separate component in equity under “Employee 
stock options outstanding reserve”. The amount recognised 
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock 
options that actually vest. Such employee expense arising on 
account of grant of options to eligible employees of wholly-owned 
subsidiaries is recorded as receivable from such subsidiary.

	� Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, 
the fair value of employees’ services is determined indirectly by 
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This 
fair value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of 
non-market vesting conditions (for example profitability and sales 
growth). All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as 
an expense in profit or loss. If vesting periods or other vesting 
conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, 
based on the best available estimate of the number of share 
options expected to vest.

	� Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about 
the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. 
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication, 
that the number of share options expected to vest differs from 
previous estimates. Any adjustment to cumulative share-based 
compensation, resulting from a revision, is recognised in the 
current period.

	� The number of vested options ultimately exercised by option 
grantee does not impact the expense recorded in any period. 
Upon exercise of stock options, the proceeds received, net of 
any directly attributable transaction costs, are allocated to share 
capital up to the nominal (or par) value of the equity shares issued 
with any excess being recorded as share premium.

2.8.	 Tax Expenses:

	� Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and 
deferred tax expense/benefit. Current and deferred taxes are 
recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items 
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

	 (i)	 Current Tax:

		�  Current tax payable is calculated based on taxable profit 
for the year. Current tax is recognised based on the 
amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax 
authorities based on applicable tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.  
The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in 
the tax return with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions, where appropriate. Current tax assets and tax 
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable 
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 (ii)	 Deferred Tax:

		�  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
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statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit.

		�  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 
taxable temporary timing difference. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised for deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that they are probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary difference 
can be utilised.

		�  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 
each reporting date and adjusted to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted on the 
reporting date.

		�  Current and deferred tax for the year are recognised in profit 
or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which 
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

	 (iii)	 Uncertain Tax Positions:

		�  Accruals for uncertain tax positions require the Management 
to make judgement of potential exposures. Accruals for 
uncertain tax positions are measured using either the most 
likely amount or the expected value amount, depending 
on which method the entity expects to better predict the 
resolution of the uncertainty. Tax benefits are not recognised 
unless the tax positions will probably be accepted by 
the tax authorities. This is based upon the Management 
interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the 
expectation of how the tax authority will resolve the matter. 
Once considered probable of not being accepted, the 
Management reviews each material tax benefit and reflects 
the effect of the uncertainty in determining the related 
taxable amounts.

2.9.	 Property, Plant and Equipment:

	 (i)	 Recognition and Measurement:

		�  Freehold land is stated at historical cost and is not depreciated 
Premium paid for the leasehold land is amortised over the 
lease period. All other items of property, plant and equipment 
are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount 
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing 
cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets 
to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount 
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured 
reliably. When significant parts of plant and equipment are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates 
them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other 

repairs and maintenance costs are recognised as expense in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

		�  The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the 
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a 
provision is met.

		�  Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned 
during the project development stage prior to its intended 
use, are considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed 
under Capital Work- in- Progress.

	 (ii)	 Depreciation:

		�  Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment (other 
than freehold land) is provided based on useful life of the 
assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. Depreciation on 
property, plant and equipment, which are added/disposed-off 
during the year, is provided on pro-rata basis with reference 
to the month of addition/ deletion, in the profit or loss.

		�  Cost of the assets less its residual value is depreciated 
over its useful life. Depreciation is calculated on a straight 
line basis over the useful life of the assets as prescribed in 
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, are as follows.

		�  For certain class of assets, based on the technical evaluation 
and assessment, the Company believes that the useful lives 
adopted by it best represent the period over which an asset 
is expected to be available for use. Accordingly, for these 
assets, the useful lives estimated by the Company are 
different from those prescribed in the Schedule II. 

Category Useful life

Leasehold Land Lower of lease term or 
useful life

Buildings 30 to 60 years

Plant and Machinery 3 to 25 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 to 10 years

Office equipment 3 to 6 years

Air conditioners 15 years

		�  The Management believes that the estimated useful lives are 
realistic and reflects fair approximation of the period over 
which the assets are likely to be used. At each financial year 
end, the Management reviews the residual values, useful lives 
and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment, 
and values of the same are adjusted prospectively, where 
needed.

	 (iii)	 De-recognition:

		�  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as 
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consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 
assesses whether:

	 (i)	 the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

	 (ii)	� the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of 
the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout 
the period of use; and

	 (iii)	 the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

	� The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability 
at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially 
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an 
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset 
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, 
less any lease incentives received.

	 (ii)	 Company as a Lessor:

		�  The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date to the 
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or 
the end of the lease term.

		�  The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are 
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and 
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
re-measurements of the lease liability. The lease liability is 
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments 
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental 
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability 
is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. It is re-measured when there is a 
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate 
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of 
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination 
option.

		�  When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss, if the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced 
to zero.

2.17. Financial Instruments:

	� A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

	� The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities 
when it becomes party to the contractual provision of the 
instrument.

	 I.	 Financial Assets:

	 a)	 Classification:

		�  The Company classifies its financial assets in the following 
measurement categories:

		  •	� Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either 
through other comprehensive income, or through profit 
or loss); and

		  •	� Those to be measured at amortised cost. The 
classification depends on the entity’s business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.

		�  For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either 
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. 
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for 
trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made 
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to 
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

	 b)	 Initial Recognition and Measurement:

		�  Financial assets are initially measured at its fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or 
deducted from the fair value of the concerned financial 
assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 
costs, directly attributable to acquisition of financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately 
in profit or loss. However, trade receivables that do not 
contain a significant financing component is measured at 
transaction price.

	 c)	 Subsequent Measurement:

		�  For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies 
financial asset in the following broad categories:

	 (i)	� Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (net of any write down 
for impairment, if any):

		�  Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when 
asset is held within a business model, whose objective is 
to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and 
contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised costs using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method 
less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Cash and 
bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial 
assets of the Company are covered under this category.

Under the EIR method, the future cash receipts are exactly 
discounted to the initial recognition value using EIR. The 
cumulative amortisation using the EIR method of the 
difference between the initial recognition amount and 
maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net 
of principal repayments, if any) of the financial asset over the 
relevant period of the financial asset to arrive at amortised 
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cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the 
amortisation under EIR method is recognised as interest 
income over the relevant period of the financial asset. The 
same is included under “other income” in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. The amortised cost of the financial asset is 
also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

	 (ii)	 Debt Instruments at FVTOCI:

		�  Financial assets under this category are measured initially, 
as well as at each reporting date at fair value, when asset 
is held with a business model whose objective is to hold 
asset for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets. Fair value movements are recognised in the 
other comprehensive income.

		�  The Company does not have any financial asset under this 
category.

	 (iii)	 Debt Instruments and Derivatives at FVTPL:

		�  Financial assets under this category are measured initially 
as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Changes in fair 
value are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 (iv)	 Investment in Subsidiaries:

		�  Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where 
an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of 
the investment is assessed and written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, the difference between net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Upon first-time 
adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its 
investments in subsidiaries and associates at the Previous 
GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of 
transition to Ind AS i.e., April 1, 2015.

	 (v)	 Other Equity Investments:

		�  All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with 
fair value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

		�  All equity investments in the scope of Ind-AS 109 are 
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held 
for trading are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either 
as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is 
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the Company 
decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then 
all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the 
amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. 
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the 
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the profit or loss. Transaction cost of financial 
assets at FVTPL is expensed in profit or loss.

	 (vi)	 De-recognition:

		�  A financial asset is primarily derecognised when rights 
to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the 
Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive 
cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially 
transferred all the risk and reward of the ownership of the 
financial assets.

		�  On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that 
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such 
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit 
or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

	 (vii)	 Impairment of Financial Assets:

		�  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected 
Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of 
financial assets other than those measured at fair value 
through profit and loss (FVTPL).

		�  ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that 
are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and 
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all 
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest 
rate.

		�  For trade receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from 
initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses 
historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the 
portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these 
historical default rates are reviewed, and changes in the 
forward looking estimates are analysed. For other assets, the 
Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss, 
where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is 
significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

		�  ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised 
during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

	 II.	 Financial Liabilities:

	 a)	 Classification

		�  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans 
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

	 b)	 Initial Recognition and Measurement:

		�  The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance 
Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. The Company classifies all financial liabilities 
as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

		�  All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and 
in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include 
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	� All assets and liabilities, for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements, are categorised within the 
fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels, based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements 
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows. The 
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) 
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

	� Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities

	� Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly

	� Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability 
for the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.19. Research and Development Expenditure:

	� Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss as incurred. Development expenditure is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the 
following criteria are satisfied: -

	 (i)	 development costs can be measured reliably,

	 (ii)	� the product or process is technically and commercially 
feasible,

	 (iii)	 future economic benefits are probable, and

	 (iv)	� the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to 
complete development and to use the asset.

2.20. Offsetting Financial Instruments:

	� Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is 
reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not 
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the 
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency 
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.21. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

	� Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash 
at bank including fixed deposit/highly liquid investments with 
original maturity period of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.22. Cash Flow Statements:

	� Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby 
net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions 
of a noncash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 

expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The 
cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of  
the Company is segregated.

3. RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

	� The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard 
or amendments to the existing standards under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to 
time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 
April 1, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework:

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of 
applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and 
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 
under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the 
acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change 
the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect 
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements.

Ind AS 16 – Proceeds Before Intended Use:

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from 
the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from 
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset 
for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales 
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not 
expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of 
its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract:

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract 
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs 
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs 
of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, 
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to 
fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification 
and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021):

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it 
applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether 
to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect 
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements.

Ind AS 116 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021):

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement 
of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any 
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives 
that might arise because of how lease incentives were described 
in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment 
to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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4.	� KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND 
ASSUMPTIONS

	� The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires 
the Management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
or liabilities affected in future periods. The company evaluates 
these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently 
available information. The key assumptions concerning the future 
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are described below:

	� The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with the 
Ind AS requires judgements, estimates and assumptions to be 
made, that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
on the date of the financial statements, the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the 
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the 
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the 
Management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, 
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes different from the estimates. The difference between 
actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which 
the results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to 
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current 
and future periods.

	 a)	 Income Taxes and Deferred Tax Assets:

		�  The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant 
judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for 
the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision 
for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/
recovered for uncertain tax positions. Deferred tax asset 
is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary difference 
can be utilised. The Management assumes that taxable profit 
will be available while recognising the deferred tax assets.

	 b)	 Property, Plant and Equipment:

		�  Property, plant and equipment represent a significant 
proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining 
an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life as prescribed 
in the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives 
and residual values of the Company’s assets are determined 
by the Management at the time the asset is acquired and 
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. 
The lives are based on historical experience with similar 
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may 
impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial 
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in 

production or from a change in market demand of the 
product or service output of the asset.

	 c)	 Intangible Assets:

		�  Internal technical or user team assesses the remaining 
useful lives of Intangible assets. The Management believes 
that the assigned useful lives are reasonable.

	 d)	 Impairment of Non- Financial Assets:

		�  The Company assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s or Cash-generating Units (CGU’s) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash inflows, that are largely independent of 
those from other assets or a group of assets. Where the 
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate, that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value 
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken 
into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an 
appropriate valuation model is used.

	 e)	 Impairment of Financial Assets:

		�  The impairment provisions for financial assets are based 
on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash 
loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these 
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment 
calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing 
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at 
the end of each reporting period.

	 f)	 Recognition and Measurement of Defined Benefits Obligation:

		�  The obligation arising from the defined benefits plan is 
determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key 
actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary 
escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. 
The discount rate is determined with reference to market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on the government 
bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds 
correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment 
benefits obligations.

	 g)	 Recognition and Measurement of Other Provisions:

		�  The recognition and measurement of other provisions are 
based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of 
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known 
at the Balance Sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at 
a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure included in 
other provisions.

	 h)	 Contingencies:

		�  Disclosure of contingent liabilities is made when there is 
a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 







GOOD PEOPLE FOR GOOD HEALTH

JB Pharma Annual Report 2021-22100

5a.	 Right-of-Use Asset

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 

2021

Additions Disposals As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
April 01, 

2021

Depreciation 
charge for 

the year

On 
disposals

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2021

Right-of-use 
asset- Leasehold 
land (note 2)

 1,358.95  –    708.50  650.45  129.93  7.65  38.27  99.31  551.14  1,229.02 

Right-of-use 
asset- Other 
buildings (note 
2)

 1,718.67  2,835.78  1,355.91  3,198.54  493.53  713.08  582.43  624.18  2,574.36  1,225.14 

Total  3,077.62  2,835.78  2,064.41  3,848.99  623.46  720.73  620.70  723.49  3,125.50  2,454.16 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 

2020

Additions Disposals As at  
March 31, 

2021

As at  
April 01, 

2020

Depreciation 
charge for 

the year

On 
disposals

As at  
March 31, 

2021

As at  
March 31, 

2021

As at  
March 31, 

2020

Right-of-use 
asset- Leasehold 
land (note 2)

 1,077.88  292.75  11.68  1,358.95  123.45  12.26  5.78  129.93  1,229.02  954.43 

Right-of-use 
asset- Other 
buildings (note 
2)

 1,322.27  1,670.82  1,274.42  1,718.67  772.10  741.71  1,020.28  493.53  1,225.14  550.17 

Total  2,400.15  1,963.57  1,286.10  3,077.62  895.55  753.97  1,026.06  623.46  2,454.16  1,504.60 

	 Note 1. Value of buildings includes a sum of ` 3600/- being the cost of shares in the societies

	 Note 2. Refer note 49A

	 Note 3. No depreciation has been claimed on the assets to the extent of GST claimed.
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6.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 

2021

Additions Deductions As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
April 01, 

2021

Amortisation 
for the year

Deductions As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2021

(Acquired)

Trade Marks*  845.03  63,782.45  –    64,627.48  3.66  508.69  –    512.35 64115.13  841.37 

Computer 
Software

 1,117.00  46.53  –    1,163.53  1,062.40  40.76  –    1,103.16 60.37  54.60 

Product 
Dossiers

 905.28  –    –    905.28  –    –    –    –   905.28  905.28 

Total  2,867.31  63,828.98  –    66,696.29  1,066.06  549.45  –    1,615.51  65,080.78  1,801.25 

* Related to acquisition of trademarks from Sanzyme Private Limited(refer note 42)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation Net Block

As at  
April 01, 

2020"

Additions Deductions As at  
March 31, 

2021

As at  
April 01, 

2020

Amortisation 
for the year

Deductions As at  
March 31, 

2021

As at  
March 31, 

2021

As at  
March 31, 

2020

(Acquired)

Trade Marks  827.67  17.36  –    845.03  3.66 –  –    3.66 841.37  824.01 

Computer 
Software

 1,094.06  27.14  4.20  1,117.00  1,036.13  30.47  4.20  1,062.40 54.60  57.93 

Product 
Dossiers

 905.28  –    –    905.28  –    –   –  –   905.28  905.28 

Total  2,827.01  44.50  4.20  2,867.31  1,039.79  30.47  4.20  1,066.06  1,801.25  1,787.22 

Note: Some of the trademarks are yet to be transferred in the Company’s name.

6a.	 Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP)

	 As on March 31, 2022
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress  1,345.73  24.53  20.31  –    1,390.57 

	 As on March 31, 2021

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Projects in progress  1,316.07  234.16  1,006.45  –    2,556.68 
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6b.	 Intangible Assets under Development

	 As at March 31, 2022
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in intangible assets under development 
for a period of

Less than 1 year Total

Projects in progress  476.94  476.94 

Total  476.94 476.94

Acquisition of significant intangibles:

Significant acquisitions during the year

Particulars Date of 
completion

` in lakhs Type of deal

Trademarks from Sanzyme Private Limited February 1, 2022  63,782.45 Acquisition of trademarks.

The Company has recorded the above acquired assets as intangible assets under Ind AS 38 “Intangible Assets” on the assessment that fair 
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets which is controlled by the 
Company and future economic benefits are probable.

7. 	 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

A. Investments in equity instruments (unquoted) (Fully paid)

i) In Subsidiary companies : (carried at cost)

Equity shares of OOO Unique Pharmaceutical Laboratories, Russia 
(No. of shares are not denominated as per Law of Russian Federation )

 3,881.92  3,881.92

51,885,000 (Previous year 51,885,000) Ordinary shares of AED 1 each of Unique 
Pharamaceutical Laboratories FZE, Dubai

 9,414.76  9,414.76

Total  13,296.68  13,296.68

ii) In Other companies : (carried at fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)) (fully paid)

3,866 (Previous year 3,866) Equity shares of ` 10 each of BEIL Infrastructure Ltd.  26.45  20.85

612,032 (Previous year 612,032) Equity shares of ` 10 each of Narmada Clean Tech  113.64  113.64

20,000 (Previous year 20,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each of Enviro Technology Limited  38.19  34.43

60,000 (Previous year 60,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each of Panoli Enviro Technology 
Limited

 33.74  23.75

50,000 (Previous year 50,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each of Ankleshwar Research & 
Analytical Infrastructure Limited

 3.85  4.08

2,000,000 (Previous year 2,000,000) Equity shares of ` 10 each of Asian Heart Institute & 
Research Centre Private Limited

 1,056.34  1,094.12

Total  1,272.21  1,290.87
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Total Investment in Equity Instruments  14,568.89  14,587.55

Total Non-current Investment  14,568.89  14,587.55

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  14,568.89  14,587.55

Category-wise Non current investment

Financial assets carried at cost  13,296.68  13,296.68

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss  1,272.21  1,290.87

Total Non-current investment  14,568.89  14,587.55

8. 	 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Unsecured, Considered Good

(Carried at amortised cost)

Loans to employees  74.41  54.90 

Total  74.41  54.90 

9.	 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Unsecured, Considered Good, except otherwise stated
(Carried at amortised cost)
Fixed deposits having remaining maturity more than 12 months #  8.53  18.53 
Security deposits for leased premises  309.72  338.85 
Other security deposits  163.74  125.00 

 481.99  482.38 
Other security deposits- credit impaired  75.65  75.65 
Less: Loss allowance  (75.65)  (75.65)

 –    –   
Total  481.99  482.38 

#These fixed deposits are marked as lien with various Government authorities/institutions.

10.	 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Unsecured, Considered Good 
Capital advances  1,120.67  43.43 
Prepaid expenses  95.39  63.46 
Total  1,216.06  106.89 
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	 March, 2022

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment Total

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 
Years

i. Undisputed trade receivables - considered good  37,455.18  11,207.20  1,171.70  1,856.32  427.94  0.46  52,118.80

ii. Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

iii. Disputed trade receivables - considered good – – – – – – –

iv. Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

	 March, 2021
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment Total

Less than 
6 months

6 months - 
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 
Years

i. Undisputed trade receivables - considered good  25,931.53  10,537.79  670.45  574.36  7.92  2.75  37,724.81

ii. Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired  –  –  –  –  13.84  0.37  14.21

iii. Disputed trade receivables - considered good – – – – – – –

iv. Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

14. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS -CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks  2,287.22  2,170.78 

Cheques on hand  5.11  243.16 

Cash on hand  8.60  12.35 

Remittance in transit ^  1,467.84  –   

 3,768.77  2,426.29 

Other bank balances

Unclaimed dividend A/cs *  198.38  203.11 

Fixed deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months @  –    13.51 

 198.38  216.62 

Total  3,967.15  2,642.91 

^ Remittance in transit from Biotech Laboratories Pty. Ltd. 		

*The above balances are restricted for specific use. There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund.		

@ These fixed deposits are marked as lien with various government  authorities/ institutions.
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For movement from the beginning of the reporting period to the end of the reporting period, please refer “Standalone Statement of Changes in 
Equity”.		

Nature and Purpose of Reserves		

A.	 Investment Allowance Reserve (utilised) and Capital Reserve (transferred from Amalgamating Company)		

	� This Reserve was created on amalgamation of J. B. Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals P. Ltd. with this Company w.e.f. April 1, 1984 (appointed 
date). 		

B.	 Capital Reserve		
	 Arose pursuant to forfeiture and reissue of shares.		

C.	 Contingency Reserve		
	� This reserve has been created out of retained earnings, as a matter of prudence, to take care of any unforeseen adverse contingencies.	

D.	 Securities Premium Reserve		
	� The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. In case of equity-settled share-based 

payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted as securities premium. This 
reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.		

E.	 Capital Redemption Reserve
	 Transfered from general reserve on account of buy back of shares as per Section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

F.	 General Reserve
	� The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to General Reserve pursuant to the 

earlier provisions of Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to General Reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013. The 
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profit from retained earnings for appropriation purpose.		

G.	 Retained Earnings
	� Retained Earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date, less any transfer to General Reserve, dividends or other distribution 

paid to shareholders.

H.	 Employee Stock Options Reserve

	� Employee stock options reserve is used to record the share-based payments, expense under the various ESOP schemes as per SEBI 
regulations. The reserve is used for the settlement of ESOP (refer note 48).		

I.	 Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
	� For the forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the fair value of forward contracts is recognised in cash 

flow hedging reserve under other equity. Upon de-recognition, amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are taken to profit or 
loss at the same time as the related cash flow (refer note 51C (ii)a,b and c).

21.	 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-LEASE LIABILITIES
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Lease liabilities (refer note 49B)  1,875.75  514.14 

Total  1,875.75  514.14 
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31.	 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS	
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Sales of Products and Services

Sale of pharmaceuticals products  214,890.07  183,457.35 

Product development services  365.89  986.62 

Realised exchange differences on sale of products and services  983.47  463.78 

 216,239.43  184,907.75 

Other Operating Revenues :

Processing charges  –    19.95 

Export incentives  848.34  3,283.14 

Sale of scrap  347.29  203.67 

Government grant #  171.98  165.66 

Insurance claims  144.82  14.62 

Miscellaneous income  1,235.77  604.76 

 2,748.20  4,291.80 

 Total  218,987.63  189,199.55 

	� # Government grants pertain to subsidy on property, plant and equipment of manufacturing set up. There are no unfulfilled conditions or 
contingencies attached to these grants.

Ind AS 115 disclosure
(i)	 Disaggregation of Revenue
	 The Company’s revenue disaggregated by business unit is as follows:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

India business

Domestic formulation  117,317.80  89,191.12 

International business

Export formulation  65,812.37  66,826.31 

Contract manufacturing  25,270.95  22,577.25 

Active pharmaceutical ingredient  9,076.51  8,450.87 

Others  1,510.00  2,154.00 

 Total  218,987.63  189,199.55 

(ii)	 Information about Major Customers	

One external customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 
respectively.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Thinq Pharma-Cro Pvt. Ltd.	  21,475.91  23,295.33 



115Standalone Financial Statements

Corporate Overview Statutory Report Standalone
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Financial Statements

32.	 OTHER INCOME
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Interest income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost- 

Fixed deposits  13.37  8.80 

Others  34.95  132.39 

Dividend from investments  0.50  0.50 

Net gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL- 

Net gain on sale of investments    3,522.97  1,000.81 

Fair value gain/(loss) on investments measured at FVTPL  (18.67)  4,054.22 

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  226.10  1,868.30 

Profit on sale of product registration along with its marketing authorisation and trademark –  3,368.66 

Sundry balance written back  39.81  223.09 

Miscellaneous income  42.35  532.17 

Total  3,861.38  11,188.94 

33.	 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Raw materials and packing materials

Opening inventories  15,675.38  12,555.89 

Purchases  64,680.29  57,336.01 

 80,355.67  69,891.90 

Less: Closing inventories  20,168.80  15,675.38 

Total  60,186.87  54,216.52 

34.	 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Inventories at the beginning 
Finished goods  8,023.09  6,441.31 
Stock-in-trade  1,737.70  1,915.32 
Work-in-progress  2,413.77  2,247.90 

 12,174.56  10,604.53 
Less: Inventories at the end 
Finished goods  7,572.37  8,023.09 
Stock-in-trade 5,272.28 1,737.70
Work-in-progress 1,887.27 2,413.77

14,731.92 12,174.56
(Increase)/decrease  (2,557.36)  (1,570.03)
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35.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Salaries and other benefits  31,070.32  28,159.69 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  1,801.75  1,682.93 
Share-based payments expense (refer note 48) *  6,092.91  –   
Gratuity expenses (refer note 43)  427.95  325.33 
Staff welfare expenses  513.27  430.02 
Total  39,906.20  30,597.97 

	� * Share-based payments expense charges includes net recovery of ` 172.44 lakhs from subsidiaries. (March 31, 2021- Nil) (refer note 48)

36.	 FINANCE COSTS

(` in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2022
Year ended  

March 31, 2021
Interest expense

Working capital borrowings  97.23  96.78 
Lease liabilities  150.19  57.46 
Security deposits  21.83  22.63 
Others  122.06  492.51 

Other borrowing costs-
Net interest on defined benefits obligation  70.04  19.97 
Loan processing charges  10.50  18.81 
Guarantee charges  23.02  11.02 

Total  494.87  719.18 

37.	 OTHER EXPENSES
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Processing charges  1,477.21  1,030.30 
Consumption of stores and spares  533.59  551.46 
Power and fuel  7,136.50  6,260.49 
Lease rent (Refer note 49C)  38.67  40.07 
Rates and taxes  83.15  90.47 
Insurance  835.78  693.40 
Freight and transport charges  7,920.94  4,983.03 
Repairs and maintenance- 

Buildings  181.91  284.97 
Plant and equipment  1,577.41  1,481.12 
Others  491.81  354.75 

Sales promotion and publicity expenses  9,716.90  7,135.27 
Commission on sales  3,620.92  2,859.10 
Travelling and conveyance  3,780.12  3,166.87 
Labour hire charges  2,563.07  2,412.98 
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42.	 ACQUISITION OF TRADEMARK FROM SANZYME PRIVATE LIMITED:
On February 1, 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of the trademarks. from Sanzyme Private Limited, The said acquisition is 
recognised as intangible assets.

	 Intangible assets

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Specified Intangibles Assets

Trademarks including Stamp duty 63,782.45

43.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
	 a.	 Defined Contribution Plan

	 Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expenses for the year is as under:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund 1,644.19 1,424.14

Employer’s Contribution to Superannuation Fund 38.75 114.93

Employer’s Contribution to various Insurance Schemes 91.00 111.65

	 b.	 Defined benefits Plan-Gratuity

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of the 
provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The benefits would be paid at the time of separation.

		  i.	 Changes in Present Value of defined Benefit Obligation during the year

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 5,198.98 5,222.33 

Interest Cost 329.10        356.16 

Current Service Cost 427.95        325.33

Benefits paid from the Fund (635.02)      (2,275.04)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic 
Assumptions

2.13                 48.40   

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (377.82)        1,193.86

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 343.96        327.94

Present value of Defined Benefits Obligation at the end of the year 5,289.29    5,198.98 

		  ii.	 Changes in fair value of plan assets during the year

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year 4,092.53    4,929.54

Interest Income 259.06        336.19

Contributions by the Employer 666.40        1,201.61

Benefits paid from the Fund  (635.02)      (2,275.04)

Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income (22.17)      (99.77)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 4,360.80   4,092.53
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51.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

	� The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise 
mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, trade receivables and other receivables.

	 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

	 a)	 Credit Risk

	 b)	 Liquidity Risk

	 c)	 Market Risk

	 Risk Management framework

	� Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment of the Company’s risk management framework. The Management is 
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee. The Management 
identifies, evaluates and analyses the risks to which the Company is exposed to and set appropriate mitigation measures and controls to 
monitor such risk.

	� The Management periodically reviews its risk policy and systems to assess need for changes in the policies to adapt to the changes in market 
conditions and align the same to the business of the Company. The Management through its interaction and training to concerned employees 
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which concerned employees understand their roles and obligations. 
The Audit Committee oversees how the Management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and 
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks to which the Company is exposed. The Audit Committee is 
assisted in its role by the internal auditor wherever required. Internal auditor undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management 
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit committee.

	 a)	 Credit Risk:

		�  Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing 
activities, including deposits with banks, mutual funds and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial 
instruments.

		�  The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficiently high credit standards and financial strength. 
The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is 
reasonably spread amongst the several counterparties.

		�  Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments and other balances with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against 
these because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by the reputed credit 
rating agencies.

		�  As regards credit risk for investment in mutual funds, the Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing mainly in debt schemes 
issued by the mutual funds wherein the fund manager invests asset under The Management in highly rated instruments which are of high 
credit ranking from rating agency like CRISIL or the equivalent rating agency. The Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking 
published external credit ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Company adjusts its exposure to various 
counterparties from time to time.

		�  Credit risk from trade receivables is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. Trade receivables are mainly from stockist, distributors and direct customers and are mostly non-interest bearing. Trade 
receivables generally ranges from 30-days to 180-days credit term. Credit limits are established for customers based on internal criteria 
and any deviation in credit limit require approval of Head of the department depending upon the quantum and overall business risk. 
Majority of the customers have been doing business with the company for more than 3 years and they are being monitored by individual 
business managers who deals with those customers. The Management monitors trade receivables on regular basis and take suitable 
action where needed to control the receivables crossing set criteria / limits. Also, in case of international business, particularly new 
customers, the Management reviews the business risk by evaluating economic situation of the country and the customers and generally 
starts the relation either on advance payment or on the basis of confirmed irrevocable letter of credit.

		�  The Management does an impairment analysis at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of 
minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.  Further, the Company’s customers base 
is widely distributed both economically as well as geographically and in view of the same, the quantum risk also gets spread across wide 
base and hence the Management considers risk with respect to trade receivable as low. Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the 
year, ` 5,851.88 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ` 6,335.07 lakhs) is due from 2 related parties and ` 6,845.93 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ` 6,284.42 
lakhs) is due from a single counter party which is in excess of 10% of total trade receivables.
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		  c)	 Movement in cash flow hedging reserve and costs of hedging reserve

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Opening balance – N.A.

Add: Changes in fair value 132.89 N.A

Less: Amount reclassified to profit or loss – N.A

Less: Deferred tax relating to above 33.44  N.A

Closing balance 99.45 N.A

			   Details of Hedged exposure in Foreign Currency denominated monetary items

			�   The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge against its foreign currency exposure relating to the underlying 
transactions based on past performance. The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative 
purpose.

			   The foreign exchange forward contracts used for hedging foreign currency exposure and outstanding as at reporting date are as under:

Currency As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Foreign Currency 
(in Mn.)

` in lakhs* Foreign Currency 
(in Mn.)

` in lakhs*

Forward contract to sell USD 34.35 26,033.01 23.75 17,363.63

Forward contract to sell Euro 4.98 4,189.06 4.25 3,645.86

Forward contract to sell Ruble 380.53 3,462.82 278.65 2,695.41

Forward contract to sell AUD 3.5 1,985.81 – –

Forward contract to buy USD 0.2 151.58 – –

*  Translated at year end exchange rates.

Details of Unhedged exposure in foreign currency denominated monetary items:

Currency As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Foreign Currency 
(in Mn.)

` in lakhs Foreign Currency 
(in Mn.)

` in lakhs

RECEIVABLE:

USD                     –                    –   3.48 2,545.21

EURO                 3.21     2,715.66 1.06 911.43

RUBLE              21.33         194.55 239.92 2,320.79

AED                 8.60     1,772.42 7.63 1,518.24

AUD                 0.96         545.89 0.05 28.09

GBP                 0.09           86.46 0.10 104.49

UAH 0.22                       5.47                  0.04 1.15

PAYABLE:   

USD                 2.42 1,835.81 2.39 1,747.72

EURO                 1.16         983.28 1.27 1,088.28

RUBLE              30.43         276.89 41.32 399.68

AED                 2.94         606.45 2.12 422.35

AUD                 0.35         198.55 0.06 32.14
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	 B.	 Level-wise disclosures of financial assets and liabilities by categories are as follows: 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Level Valuation techniques and key inputs

Financial Assets at amortised cost (non-
current)

    

Security Deposits 473.46 463.85 3 Discounted cash flow method using 
interest rate for similar financial 

instrument

Financial Assets at Fair value through profit 
and loss (non-current)

 

Investment in Equity shares 1,272.21 1,290.87 3 Value based on the NAV as per latest 
audited financial statement available 

which in view of the Management fairly 
represents fair value. 

Financial Assets at amortised cost (current)

Other security deposits 178.29 129.18 Discounted cash flows method using 
interest rate for similar financial 

instrument.

Financial Assets at Fair value through profit 
and loss  (current)

Investment in Mutual Fund – 66,497.48 1 Quoted NAV in active markets

Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 16) 293.23 466.62 2 Forward contracts are valued using 
available information from the banks.

Financial Assets at Fair value through other 
comprehensive income  (current)

Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 16) 132.89 – 2 Forward contracts are valued using 
available information from the banks.

		�  Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, short term loans, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial assets/liabilities approximate 
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair 
values are consistent with those used for the year ended March 31, 2021.

	 C)	 Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances for Level 3 fair value:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 2021 -2022 2020 -2021

Investment in Equity shares

Opening Balance 1,290.87 1,288.47

Fair value changes recognised in profit or loss (18.66) 2.40

Closing Balance 1,272.21 1,290.87

		�  One percentage point change in the unobservable inputs used in fair valuation of level 3 assets or liabilities does not have significant 
impact in its value.
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	 b)	 Acquisition of trademark assignment of Azmarda from Novartis AG:

		�  On April 01, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the trademark assignment of Azmarda brand, for use and commercialisation 
within India, from Novartis AG, Switzerland for a consideration of USD 32.5 million (INR ~ 246,00 lakhs). The transaction was completed on 
April 11, 2022.

59.	 ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GLOBAL HEALTH PANDEMIC FROM COVID-19 (“COVID-19”)

	� Based on the internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these financial statements by the Board of Directors, 
the Company continues to believe that the impact of Covid-19 on its business, assets, internal financial controls, profitability and liquidity, 
both present and future, would be limited and there is no indication of any material impact on the carrying amounts of inventories, tangible 
and intangible assets, investments, trade receivables and other financial assets. However, concerns of Covid-19 pandemic still continue as 
availability of vaccine on mass scale may take time and hence, the Company continues to follow necessary safety guidelines. The eventual 
outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial 
statements and the Management will continue to closely monitor the changes to economic conditions in future and its impact on the Company.

60.	 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding that the Intermediary 
shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any 
party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

					     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

					     Nikhil Chopra	 Prashant Kumar
		                       	 Chief Executive Officer & Whole-Time Director	 Director
					     DIN - 07220097	 DIN - 08342577
					   
					     Lakshay Kataria	 Sandeep Phadnis
		                    	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

					     Place : Mumbai
					     Date  : May 26, 2022
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

•	� The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Director’s report, Corporate Governance report 
and the business responsibility report, but does not include 
the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

•	� Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

•	� In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, 
compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited 
by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, 
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to 
the subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements audited 
by the other auditors.

•	� If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated 
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and 
consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the 
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group 
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 
of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board 
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective 

Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Group.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance,but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
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underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

•	� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities within the Group to express 
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, 
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

OTHER MATTERS

(a)	� We did not audit the financial statements of 3 subsidiaries, whose 
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 28,221.28 Lakhs 
as at 31st March, 2022, total revenues of Rs. 36,254.19 Lakhs 
and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.2,034.67 Lakhs for the year 
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. These financial statements have been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms 
of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our 
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance 
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

1.	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and 
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the 
separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, referred to in 
the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable 
that:

	 a)	� We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements.

	 b)	� In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books, returns and the reports of 
the other auditors.

	 c)	� The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained 
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements

	 d)	� In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act.

	 e)	� On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors of the Parent as on 31st March, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Parent, none of the 
directors of the Parent is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act.

	 f)	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” 
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting

	 g)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 of the Act.

	 h)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2022

(` in lakhs)
Particulars Note No. Year ended  

March 31, 2022
Year ended  

March 31, 2021
INCOME
I Revenue From Operations 31  242,424.38  204,252.15 
II Other Income 32  3,922.63  11,238.32 
III Total Income (I+II)  246,347.01  215,490.47 
IV EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 33A  60,221.64  54,238.96 
Purchases of stock-in-trade  25,816.46  20,036.65 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 33B  (1,744.69)  (4,125.71)
Employee benefits expense 34  43,924.22  34,060.09 
Finance costs 35  512.05  724.12 
Depreciation and amortization expense 5 & 6  7,265.99  6,866.55 
Other expenses 36  59,861.14  44,001.27 
Total expenses  195,856.81  155,801.93 

V Oqnǐs adenqd s`w 'HHH,HU(  50,490.20  59,688.54 
VI Tax expense: 30

   Current tax  12,815.34  14,220.33 
   Deferred tax (credit)/charge  (929.02)  615.92 
   Reversal of excess current tax relating to earlier years  (0.01)  (0.01)
Total tax expense  11,886.31  14,836.24 

VII Mds Oqnǐs `esdq s`w 'U,UH(  38,603.89  44,852.30 
VIII Other comprehensive income

Hsdlr sg`s vhkk mns ad qdbk`rrhǐdc sn oqnǐs nq knrr
   Re-measurement of defined benefit plan  9.54  (1,669.97)
   Income tax relating to these items  (2.40)  420.30 
Hsdlr sg`s vhkk ad qdbk`rrhǐdc sn oqnǐs nq knrr
   Gains on cash flow hedges 132.89 -
   Income tax relating to these items  (33.44)  -   

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries 294.01 1,283.13
Total other comprehensive income (net of tax)  400.60  33.46 

IX Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII)  39,004.49  44,885.76 
Mds oqnǐs `esdq s`w enq sgd xd`q `ssqhats`akd sn9
- owners of the company  38,535.74  44,796.36 
- non-controlling interest  68.15  55.94 
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to: 
- owners of the company  390.27  (31.01)
- non-controlling interest  10.33  64.47 
Total comprehensive income after tax attributable to:
- owners of the company  38,926.01  44,765.35 
- non-controlling interest  78.48  120.41 

X Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 2 each 45
  Basic (in `)  49.86  57.96 
  Diluted (in `)  49.82  57.96 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements 1-59

As per our report of even date	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	 Nikhil Chopra	 Prashant Kumar
Chartered Accountants                     	 Chief Executive Officer & Whole-Time Director	 Director
					     DIN - 07220097	 DIN - 08342577		

Rajesh K. Hiranandani	 Lakshay Kataria	 Sandeep Phadnis
Partner                                       	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai			   Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 26, 2022		  Date  : May 26, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
for the year ended March 31, 2022

(`  in lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2022 Year Ended March 31, 2021
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Oqnǐs adenqd S`w  50,490.20  59,688.54 
Adjustments For
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  7,265.99  6,866.55 
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net)  352.18  284.84 
Interest expenses  408.50  694.29 
Profit/loss on disposal/discard of property, plant and equipment (net)  (240.49)  (1,875.01)
Profit on sale of Investments measured at FVTPL  (3,522.97)  (1,000.81)
Profit on sale of product registration along with its marketing 
authorisation and trademark

 -    (3,368.66)

Net Gain on investments measured at FVTPL  18.67  (4,054.22)
Interest income  (93.43)  (177.40)
Dividend income  (0.50)  (0.50)
Government Grants  (171.98)  (165.66)
Re-measurements of defined benefits plan  9.54  (1,669.97)
Sundry balances written back  (39.81)  (223.09)
Share based payment expenses  6,265.35 
Discontinuance of Lease Assets  (14.23)  (7.19)
Allowances for credit loss(net)  -    79.64 

 10,236.82  (4,617.19)
Nodq`shmf Oqnǐs Adenqd Vnqjhmf B`ohs`k Bg`mfdr  60,727.02  55,071.35 
Adjustments For working capital                                         
Increase in Trade and other receivables  (29,283.95)  (7,059.87)
Increase in Inventories  (6,251.43)  (7,008.57)
Increase in Trade payables and other liabilities  5,283.45  4,647.54 

 (30,251.93)  (9,420.90)
Cash Generated from Operations  30,475.09  45,650.45 
Income taxes paid (including tax deducted at source)  (13,461.64)  (14,171.96)
Net Cash from Operating Activities  17,013.45  31,478.49 
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (refer note 2 below)  (6,287.00)  (4,777.30)
Purchases of intangible assets including intangible assets under 
deveolpment

 (64,391.92)

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment  777.54  2,682.18 
Proceeds from sale of product registration along with its marketing 
authorisation and trademark

 -    2,156.75 

Payment for acquisition of a business undertaking on slump sale basis  -    (850.00)
Purchase of current investments  (50,847.46)  (54,097.97)
Proceeds from sale of current investments  120,867.91  31,691.35 
Change in other bank balances  18.24  (22.60)
Interest Received  94.18  149.51 
Dividend Received  0.50  0.50 
Net Cash (used in) / from Investing Activities  231.99  (23,067.58)
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A.	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (refer note 19)

(` in  lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,545.64  1,545.64 

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at the end of the year  1,545.64  1,545.64 

B. OTHER EQUITY (refer note 20)

(` in  lakhs) 

Particulars  Attributable to equity holders of the Parent Non-
controlling 

interest

 Total

Reserves and Surplus Item of OCI

Capital Reserves 
(transferred from 

amalgamating 
company)

Other Reserves Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
reserve

Cash 
flow 

hedge 
reserve

Investment 
allowance 

Reserve 
(utilised)

Capital 
Reserve

 Capital 
Reserve

Contingency 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Employee 
Stock 

Options 
Reserve

Balance as on April 
1, 2020

 34.86  63.53  4.21  2,020.00  5,076.82  150.76 13,042.57 122,274.46 –  (663.92) –  250.10  142,253.39

Profit for the year  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  44,796.36  –  –  –  55.94 44,852.30

Other comprehensive 
income for the year

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – (1,249.67)  – 1,218.66  – 64.47 33.46

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  43,546.69  –  1,218.66  –  120.41  44,885.76

Payment of Dividend  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  (7,341.80)  –  –  –  (7,341.80)

Balance as on  
March 31, 2021

 34.86  63.53  4.21  2,020.00  5,076.82  150.76 13,042.57 158,479.35  –  554.74  –  370.51  179,797.35

Profit for the year  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  38,535.74  –  –  –  68.15  38,603.89

Other comprehensive 
income for the year

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  7.14  – 283.68 99.45 10.33 400.60

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2022
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Particulars  Attributable to equity holders of the Parent Non-
controlling 

interest

 Total

Reserves and Surplus Item of OCI

Capital Reserves 
(transferred from 

amalgamating 
company)

Other Reserves Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
reserve

Cash 
flow 

hedge 
reserve

Investment 
allowance 

Reserve 
(utilised)

Capital 
Reserve

 Capital 
Reserve

Contingency 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Employee 
Stock 

Options 
Reserve

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

 –  –  –  –  –  –  –  38,542.88 –  283.68  99.45  78.48  39,004.49

Payment of Dividend  –  –  –  –  –  –  – (12,751.54) –  –  –  –  (12,751.54)

Share based payment 
expense

 –  –  –  –  –  –  – –  6,265.35  –  –  –  6,265.35

Balance as on  
March 31, 2022

 34.86  63.53  4.21  2,020.00  5,076.82  150.76 13,042.57 184,270.69  6,265.35  838.42  99.45  448.99 212,315.65

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements (Note 1-59).

As per our report of even date	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	 Nikhil Chopra	 Prashant Kumar
Chartered Accountants                     	 Chief Executive Officer & Whole-Time Director	 Director
					     DIN - 07220097	 DIN - 08342577
					   
Rajesh K. Hiranandani	 Lakshay Kataria	 Sandeep Phadnis
Partner                                       	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai		  Place : Mumbai
Date  : May 26, 2022	 Date  : May 26, 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2022

1.	 GROUP INFORMATION

	� J. B. Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the Company”) is a 
public limited company incorporated in India (Corporate identity 
number: L24390MH1976PLC019380) having its registered office 
at Neelam Centre, `B` Wing, 4th Floor, Hind Cycle Road, Worli, 
Mumbai-400030. The Company is engaged in the business of 
manufacturing and marketing of diverse range of pharmaceutical 
formulations, herbal remedies and Active Pharmaceutical 
Ingredients (APIs). These consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved for the issue by the 
Board of Directors vide their resolution dated May 26, 2022. Equity 
Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

	� The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial 
statements of J. B. Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the 
company”) and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries 
referred to as `the Group`).

2.	� SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY 
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

2.1	  Basis of Preparation:

2.1	 a)	� Statement of Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind-AS):

		�  The financial statements of the Group as at and for the year 
ended March 31, 2022 have been prepared in accordance 
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended from time to time, and the other relevant provisions 
of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in 
India. The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value 
at the end of each reporting period as explained in the 
accounting policies stated below.

		�  These financial statements have been prepared by the Group 
as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are 
effective or elected for early adoption at the Company’s 
annual reporting date, March 31, 2022.

2.1	 b)	 Basis of Measurement:

		�  The financial statements have been prepared on a historical 
cost basis and on accrual basis, except for the following:

		  •	� Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair 
value or at amortised cost depending on classification;

		  •	� Derivative financial instruments and contingent 
consideration is measured at fair value;

		  •	� Assets held for sale – measured at fair value less cost 
to sell;

		  •	� Defined benefits plans – plan assets measured at fair 
value;

		  •	� Employee Stock Option Plans measured at fair value;

		  •	� Lease liability and Right of use of assets –measured at 
fair value; and

		  •	 Share-based payments – measured at fair value.

2.1	 c)	 Consistency of Accounting Policy:

		�  The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the 
periods presented in the financial statements, except where 
a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or 
a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the 
accounting policy hitherto use.

 2.1	 d)	 New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

		�  The Group has applied the following amendments for the 
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 
April 1, 2020:

		  •	� Amendment to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, 
Definition of business

		  •	� Amendment to Ind AS 116, Leases, lease modification 
accounting for COVID-19, rent concession

		  •	� Amendment to Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes 
in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Change in definition 
of materiality

		  •	� Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, 
Temporary exceptions from applying hedge accounting

		  •	� Amendment to Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures, Disclosure for uncertainty arising from 
interest rate benchmark reform

		  •	� Ind AS 10, Events after reporting period, Definition 
for non-adjusting events and its effective date of 
application

		  •	� Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets.

		�  These amendments did not have any impact on the 
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to 
significantly affect the current or future periods.
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2.1	 e)	� Functional and Presentation Currency and Rounding Off of 
the Amount:

		�  The Functional and presentation currency of the Group is 
Indian rupees. Accordingly, all amounts disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements and notes have been 
shown in Indian rupees and all values are shown in lakhs and 
rounded to two decimals except when otherwise indicated.

1-1	 Btqqdms udqrtr Mnm,Btqqdms Bk`rrhǐb`shnm9

	� The Group has classified all its assets and liabilities under current 
and non-current as required by Ind AS 1- Presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.2	 a)	 Assets:

		�  An asset is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

		  •	� Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle;

		  •	� Held primarily for purpose of trading;

		  •	� Expected to be realized within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or

		  •	� Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.

		  All other assets are classified as non-current.

2.2	 b)	 Liabilities:

		�  A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

		  •	� It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

		  •	� It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

		  •	� It is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting perio;, or

		  •	� There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement 
of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of 
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of 
equity instrument do not affect its classification.

		  All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

2.2 	 c)	 Principles of Consolidation:

	 (i)	 Business Combinations and Control:

		�  In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts for 
business combinations using the acquisition method when 
the control is transferred to the Group. The Holding Company 
determines the basis of control in line with the requirements 
of Ind AS 110, Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date on which 
control commences until the date on which control ceases.

	 (ii)	 Consolidation Procedure:

		�  The consolidated financial statements comprise of the 
financial statement of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries referred herein below. The financial statements 
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries have been 
consolidated on a line by line basis by adding together the 
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes and 
expenses after eliminating intra-group balances, intra group 
transactions and unrealized profits resulting there from and 
are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as 
the Holding Company’s independent financial statements.

		�  The difference between the Group costs of investments 
in the Subsidiaries, over its portion of equity at the time 
of acquisition of shares is recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the 
case may be. The Goodwill recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements is tested for impairment, if any.

		�  For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial 
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign 
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing 
on the reporting date. Income and expense items are 
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. 
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a foreign 
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling 
interests as appropriate).

		�  The financial statements of the Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries have been consolidated using uniform 
accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are 
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting 
policies. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used 
in consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as 
that of the Holding Company i.e., year ended March 31, 2022.

	 (iii)	 Non-Controlling Interest:

		�  Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated 
subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated 
Balance Sheet separately within equity.

		�  Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated 
subsidiaries consists of:

		  a)	� The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling 
interests at the date on which investment in a subsidiary 
is made; and

		  b)	� The non-controlling interests’ share of movements in 
equity since the date holding subsidiary relationship 
came into existence.

		�  The profit and other comprehensive income attributable 
to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are shown 
separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
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1-1/	Neerdsshmf ǐm`mbh`k hmrsqtldmsr9

	� Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is 
reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not 
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the 
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency 
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.21	Cash and Cash Equivalents:

	� Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash 
at bank including fixed deposit/highly liquid investments with 
original maturity period of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.22	Cash Flow Statements:

	� Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the 
consolidated net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of 
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Group are segregated.

3.	 RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

	� The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards 
or amendments to the existing standards under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to 
time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 
April 1, 2022, as below:

	� Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework:

	� The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of 
applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and 
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 
under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the 
acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change 
the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect 
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements.

	 Ind AS 16 – Proceeds Before Intended Use:

	� The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from 
the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from 
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset 
for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales 
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not 
expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of 
its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

	 Hmc @R 26 Ƣ Nmdqntr Bnmsq`bsr , Bnrsr ne Etkǐkkhmf ` Bnmsq`bs9

	� The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract 
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs 
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs 
of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, 
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to 
fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification 
and the Group does not expect the amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements.

	 Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021):

	� The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it 
applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether 
to derecognise a financial liability. The Group does not expect 
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements.

	 Ind AS 116 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021):

	� The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement 
of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any 
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives 
that might arise because of how lease incentives were described 
in that illustration. The Group does not expect the amendment to 
have any significant impact in its financial statements.

4.	� KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND 
ASSUMPTIONS

	� The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements 
requires the Management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
or liabilities affected in future periods. The Group evaluates these 
estimates and assumption based on the most recently available 
information.

	� The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with the 
Ind AS requires judgements, estimates and assumptions to be 
made, that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
on the date of the financial statements, the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the 
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the 
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the 
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, 
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between 
actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to 
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current 
and future periods.

	� The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources 
of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
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cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets. 
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on 
assumption about risk of default and expected loss rates. 
Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 
the inputs to the impairment calculation are based on past 
history, existing market condition as well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

	 j)	 Allowances for Inventories:

		�  Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic 
basis. The purpose is to compare the carrying value of the 
aged inventory items with the respective net realisable value 
and also to identify obsolete and slow-moving items, so as 
to make adequate allowances for the same. Management 
is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories has been made in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

	 k)	  Research and Development Costs:

		�  Management monitors progress of internal research and 
development projects by using a project management 
system. Significant judgement is required in distinguishing 
research from the development phase. Development 
costs are recognised as an asset when all the criteria are 
met, whereas research costs are expensed as incurred. 
The Management also monitors whether the recognition 
requirements for development costs continue to be met. This 
is necessary due to inherent uncertainty in the economic 
success of any product development.

	 l)	 Leases:

		�  Ind AS 116 “Leases” requires lessees to determine the lease 
term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with 
any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such 
option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment 
on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and 
thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any 
options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. 
In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors 
such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken 
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the 
lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the 
Group’s operations taking into account the location of the 
underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. 
The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that 
the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

	 m)	  Sales Returns:

		�  The Group accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an 
allowance for sales returns concurrent with the recognition of 
revenue at the time of a product sale. This allowance is based 
on the Group’s estimate of expected sales returns. The Group 
deals in various products and operates in various markets. 
Accordingly, the estimate of sales returns is determined 
primarily by the Group’s historical experience in the markets 
in which the Group operates. With respect to established 
products, the Group considers its historical experience of 

sales returns, levels of inventory in the distribution channel, 
estimated shelf life, product discontinuances, price changes 
of competitive products, and the introduction of competitive 
new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the 
Group’s business and markets.

	 n)	 Expected Credit Loss:

		�  The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of loss allowances on the 
following:

		  •	 Trade receivables and lease receivables;

		  •	� Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other 
than trade receivables and lease receivables);

		  •	� Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

		�  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected 
credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the trade receivables or any contractual 
right to receive cash or another financial asset that results 
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115. 
For this purpose, the Group follows ‘simplified approach’ 
for recognition of impairment loss allowance on the trade 
receivable balances. The application of simplified approach 
does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.

		�  As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to 
determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade 
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically 
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade 
receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At 
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are 
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analysed.

		�  In the case of other assets, the Group determines if there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset 
since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has 
not increased significantly, an amount equal to twelve-month 
ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. However, 
if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

	 o)	 Impact of Covid/Geopolitical Developments:

		�  The Group considered the uncertainties relating to the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the geopolitical situation in Russia 
and Ukraine, in assessing the recoverability of receivables, 
goodwill, intangible assets, investments and other assets. 
For this purpose, the Group considered internal and external 
sources of information up to the date of approval of these 
financial results. Based on its judgements, estimates and 
assumptions, including sensitivity analysis, the Group 
expects to fully recover the carrying amount of receivables, 
goodwill, intangible assets, investments and other assets.

		�  The Group will continue to closely monitor any material 
changes to future economic conditions.
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6.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
As at  

April 01, 
2021

Additions Disposals Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
April 01, 

2021

Amortisation 
for the year

Deductions Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2021

(Acquired)

Trade 
Marks*

 845.03  63,782.45  -    -    64,627.48  3.66  508.69  -    -    512.35 64,115.13  841.37 

Computer 
Software

1,134.44  47.33  -    0.62  1,182.39 1,074.23  41.91  -    (2.12)  1,114.02  68.37  60.21 

Product 
Dossiers

 2,308.94  91.93  -    80.44 2,481.31  -    2.65  -    (0.34)  2.31  2,479.00  2,308.94 

Total  4,288.41  63,921.71  -   81.06  68,291.18  1,077.89  553.25  -    (2.46)  1,628.68  66,662.50  3,210.52 

* Related to acquisition of trademarks from Sanzyme Private Limited(refer note 40)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Amortization Net Block

 As at  
 April 01, 

2020 

Additions Disposals Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

 As at  
March 31, 

2021 

 As at  
 April 01, 

2020 

Amortization 
for the year

Deductions Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

 As at  
March 31, 

2021 

 As at  
March 31, 

2021 

 As at  
March 31, 

2020 

(Acquired)

Trade 
Marks

 827.67  17.36  -    -    845.03  3.66  -    -    -    3.66  841.37  824.01 

Computer 
Software

 1,112.82  27.94  4.20  (2.12)  1,134.44  1,047.00  33.81  4.20  (2.38)  1,074.23  60.21  65.82 

Product 
Dossiers

 2,119.41  19.09  31.59  202.03  2,308.94  -    -    -    -    -    2,308.94  2,119.41 

Total  4,059.90  64.39  35.79  199.91  4,288.41  1,050.66  33.81  4.20  (2.38)  1,077.89  3,210.52  3,009.24 

Note: Some of the trademarks are yet to be transferred in the Company’s name.

6a.	 Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP)

	 As on March 31, 2022
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Projects in progress  1,345.73  24.53  20.31  -    1,390.57 

	 As on March 31, 2021
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Projects in progress  1,316.07  234.16  1,006.45  -    2,556.68 
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	 March, 2022

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment Total

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 
Years

i. Undisputed trade receivables - considered good  38,350.60  14,025.05  1,151.54  1,956.20  446.55  13.43  55,943.37 

ii. Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    12.52  12.52 

iii. Disputed trade receivables - considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv. Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

	 March, 2021
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment Total

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 
Years

i. Undisputed trade receivables - considered good  26,152.50  11,381.93  1,142.25  678.45  20.45  6.67  39,382.25 

ii. Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired  -    -   -    -    26.36  0.37  26.73 

iii. Disputed trade receivables - considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv. Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -   

14. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS -CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks  3,990.34  2,273.99 

Cheques on hand  5.11  243.16 

Cash on hand  9.12  12.84 

Remittance in transit ^  1,467.84  -   

Bank deposits (having original maturity of less than 3 months)  182.00  338.56 

 5,654.41  2,868.55 

Other bank balances

Unclaimed dividend A/cs *  198.38  203.11 

Fixed deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months @  -    13.51 

 198.38  216.62 

Total  5,852.79  3,085.17 

*The above balances are restricted for specific use. There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund.

@ These fixed deposits are marked as lien with various government  authorities/ institutions.

^ Remittance in transit from Biotech Laboratories Pty. Ltd. 
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Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares.			 

Name of the Shareholders  As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021 

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding

Tau Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd (Holding Company)  41,732,332 54.00 41,732,332 54.00

% change to computed with respect to numbers at the beginning of the year

Shares held by promoters - No. of shares % of total shares % change during the year

TAU INVESTMENT HOLDINGS PTE. LTD.  41,732,332 54.00  nil 

- Mody Family members holding 1.91% have been re-classified from Promoter/ Promoter group to Public on receipt of Stock exchange approval 
wef November 2, 2021. Therefore, during the year, aggregate promoter/ promoter group holding in the Company decreased from 55. 91% to 54%.

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 2 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per 
share and carries identical right as to dividend. These shares are not subject to any restrictions. The Company declares and pays dividend in 
Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholder.

@ffqdf`sd mtladq ne anmtr rg`qdr hrrtdc+ rg`qdr hrrtdc enq bnmrhcdq`shnm nsgdq sg`m b`rg ctqhmf sgd odqhnc ne sgd ǐud xd`qr hlldch`sdkx 
preceding the reporting date					   

The Company has not issued any bonus shares, shares for consideration other than cash during the five years immediately preceding the 
reporting date.

Buy-back of Equity Shares

For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared, the Company has bought back, in 
aggregate, 7,537,878 (as at Previous year: 7,537,878) equity shares of ` 2 each.

Equity shares reserved for issue under employee stock options schemes

For number of stock options against which equity shares to be issued by the Company upon vesting and exercise of those stock options by the 
option holders as per the relevant schemes - (refer note 46.)

20.	 OTHER EQUITY
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Capital reserves (transferred from amalgamating company)-

  -Investment allowance reserve (utilised)  34.86  34.86 

  -Capital reserve  63.53  63.53 

Capital reserve  4.21  4.21 

Contingency reserve  2,020.00  2,020.00 

Securities premium reserve  5,076.82  5,076.82 

Capital redemption reserve  150.76  150.76 

General reserve  13,042.57  13,042.57 

Retained earnings *  184,270.69  158,479.35 
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21.	 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES -LEASE LIABILITIES
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Lease liabilities (refer note 47B)  2,061.76  514.14 

Total  2,061.76  514.14 

22. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Oqnuhrhnm enq dloknxdd admdǐsr
Gratuity  51.20  136.22 
Compensated absences (refer note 41)  1,321.86  1,120.92 
Total  1,373.06  1,257.14 

23A. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Brought forward Losses  431.39  510.16 

Others  211.71  184.14 

Total  643.10  694.30 

23B. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation  5,957.46  3,796.80 
Fair valuation of investments measured at FVTPL  -    3,415.79 
Cash flow hedge and others  73.37  -   

 6,030.83  7,212.59 
Deferred tax assets
Retirement benefits  712.50  629.80 
Others  562.42  906.13 

 1,274.92  1,535.93 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  4,755.91  5,676.66 

24.	 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - OTHERS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Deferred government grants  316.64  493.22 
Total  316.64  493.22 

Government grant has been received for the purpose of purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. The condition against which 
the grant is received is the export obligation to be fulfilled within certain specified period.		



178

25.	 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Loans repayable on Demand - from Banks

Secured (Carried at amortised cost)#

Bank overdraft  -    621.18 

Export packing credit in Rupees  2,000.00  2,000.00 

Export packing credit in foreign currency  631.50  643.28 

Total  2,631.50  3,264.46 

# Working capital borrowings from the banks at an interest rate of 3.5%, and are secured by first pari passu charge on the stocks and book 
debts of the Company.

25A.CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Lease liabilities (refer note 47B)  762.62  720.19 

Total  762.62  720.19 

26.	 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(Carried at amortised cost)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  2,063.86  1,309.55 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  20,384.11  17,382.79 

Total  22,447.97  18,692.34 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year, which are unpaid. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 0-90 days of recognition based on the credit terms. Trade and other payables are presented 
as current liabilities, unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

	 March, 2022

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment Total

Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years More than 3 Years

i. MSME*  2,063.86  -    -    -    2,063.86 

ii. Others  17,259.72  2,647.44  258.01  218.94  20,384.11 

iii. Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

iv. Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
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	 March, 2021

(` in lakhs)
Particulars Not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Payment Total

Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years More than 3 Years

i. MSME*  1,309.55  -    -    -    1,309.55 
ii. Others  15,637.40  1,256.36  255.23  233.80  17,382.79 
iii. Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
iv. Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

*The details of amount outstanding to micro enterprise and Small enterprise based on available information with the company is as under:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

a) 	� The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as 
at the end of each accounting year 

Principal  2,003.27  1,248.99 

Interest due thereon  60.59  60.56 

b) 	� The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

 -    -   

c) 	� The amount of payment made to supplier beyond the appointed day during the each 
accounting year.

 2.18  128.35 

d) 	� The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding interest specified under the  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development 
Act, 2006.

 0.03  1.83 

e) 	� The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year 

 60.59  60.56 

f) 	� The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, 
until such date when interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for 
the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under  Section 23 of Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

 60.59  60.56 

The above information regarding Micro and  Small  Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis 
of information available with the company. This has been relied upon by the auditors. The delayed payment has been computed having regard 
to specified credit period for 45 days under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006. 

27.	 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-OTHERS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Interest accrued and due on borrowings  0.56  0.17 
Unclaimed dividends*  198.38  203.11 
Creditors for capital expenditure  351.73  726.89 
Forward contracts payable  -    45.74 
Other payables (mainly, payable to employees)  4,572.13  5,600.15 
Deposits  761.25  265.25 
Total  5,884.05  6,841.31 

*There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.		
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28.	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Advances from customers  431.52  260.84 
Deferred government grants  170.64  166.04 
Statutory dues  882.01  832.04 
Advances against disposal of property, plant and equipment  -    162.00 
Total  1,484.17  1,420.92 

29.	 CURRENT LIABILITIES -PROVISIONS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Provision for employee benefits
  Gratuity (Refer note 41)  928.49  971.03 
  Compensated absences (Refer note 41)  663.22  610.43 
Expected sales returns  2,960.09  1,216.50 
Total  4,551.80  2,797.96 

30. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Provision for taxes  7,754.21  8,209.64 

Less: Taxes paid  7,144.76  7,419.45 

Total  609.45  790.19 

A.	 The components of income tax expense are as under

(` in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2022
Year ended  

March 31, 2021
h-	 Hmbnld s`w qdbnfmhydc hm sgd Rs`sdldms ne Oqnǐs `mc Knrr

Current Tax:
On profits for the year  12,815.34  14,220.33 
Adjustment in respect of prior years  (0.01)  (0.01)
Deferred tax :
(Credit)/charge  (929.02)  615.92 

Sns`k Hmbnld s`w qdbnfmhydc hm sgd Rs`sdldms ne Oqnǐs `mc Knrr  11,886.31  14,836.24 
ii.	 Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax :
On re-measurement of the defined benefits plan  (2.40)  420.30 

        On gain of cash flow hedge reserve  33.44  
Total Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income  (35.84)  420.30 
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A-	 Qdbnmbhkh`shnm ne s`w dwodmrd `mc sgd `bbntmshmf oqnǐs hr tmcdq

(` in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2022
Year ended  

March 31, 2021
@bbntmshmf Oqnǐs adenqd s`w  50,490.20  59,688.54 
Enacted tax rate in India (%)  25.17  25.17 
Expected income tax expense  12,707.37  15,022.41 

Tax effect of :
- Expenses not deductible  435.77  189.58 
- Income chargeable at different tax rate and on which indexation benefit is availed  (1,990.55)  (359.70)
- Utilisation of brought forward losses on which no deferred tax asset was recognised  -    (22.20)
- Others  767.73  (37.48)
- Changes in tax rate  (34.00)  43.64 

Tax expenses  11,886.32  14,836.25 
-Adjustment recognised in current year in relation to the current tax of earlier years  (0.01)  (0.01)

S`w dwodmrdr qdbnfmhrdc hm sgd Rs`sdldms ne Oqnǐs `mc Knrr  11,886.31  14,836.24 

	
	 31. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(` in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2022
Year ended  

March 31, 2021

Sales of Products and Services
Sale of pharmaceuticals products  238,411.35  198,767.06 
Product development services  365.89  980.55 
Realised exchange differences on sale of products and services  984.32  463.78 

 239,761.56  200,211.39 
Other Operating Revenues :

Processing charges  -    19.95 
Export incentives  848.34  3,283.14 
Sale of scrap  347.29  203.67 
Government grant #  171.98  165.66 
Insurance claims  144.82  14.95 
Miscellaneous income   1,150.40  353.39 

 2,662.83  4,040.76 
 Total  242,424.39  204,252.15 

	� # Government grants pertain to subsidy on property, plant and equipment of manufacturing set up. There are no unfulfilled conditions or 
contingencies attached to these grants.
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33A.COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Raw materials and packing materials

Opening inventories  15,765.06  12,611.00 

Purchases  64,692.00  57,393.02 

 80,457.06  70,004.02 

Less: Closing inventories  20,235.42  15,765.06 

Total  60,221.64  54,238.96 

33B. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 Inventories at the beginning 

 Finished goods  14,786.81  10,649.35 

 Stock-in-trade  1,737.70  1,915.32 

 Work-in-progress  2,413.77  2,247.90 

 18,938.28  14,812.57 

 Less: Inventories at the end 

 Finished goods  13,523.42  14,786.81 

 Stock-in-trade  5,272.28  1,737.70 

 Work-in-progress  1,887.27  2,413.77 

 20,682.97  18,938.28 

(Increase)/decrease  (1,744.69)  (4,125.71)

34.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 Salaries and other benefits  34,759.95  31,473.86 

 Contribution to provident fund and other funds  1,910.67  1,789.59 

 Share-based payments expense (refer note 46) *  6,265.52  -   

 Gratuity expense (refer note 41)  428.76  326.14 

 Staff welfare expenses  559.32  470.50 

Total  43,924.22  34,060.09 

	 * Share-based payments expense charges include net recovery of ` 172.44 lakhs from subsidiaries. (March 31, 2021- Nil) (refer note 46)
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37 A. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
	 COMMITMENTS

	 •	 Capital Commitments:

(` in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided (net of advances)

1,493.75 414.74

	 •	 Other Commitments:

		�  The Holding Company has imported capital goods including spares under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG) utilising the 
benefit of zero rate or concessional rate of Customs duty. These benefits are subject to the fulfilment of certain export obligation within 
the stipulated period of time under the EPCG Scheme. Such export obligation remaining to be fulfilled at the year-end is as follows:

(` in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Export obligation under EPCG Scheme 405.85 4,870.73

	 CONTINGENCIES

	 •	 Claim against the Holding Company not acknowledged as debts include claim relating to pricing, commission, etc.

	 •	 It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timing of cash outflow, if any, in respect of our pending resolution of the respective 
proceedings as it is determined only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forum/ authorities.

 •      	 The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

 •     	 The Group pending litigations comprise of proceedings pending with various direct tax, indirect tax and other authorities. The Group 
has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as 
contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a 
materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

 •     	 Pharmaceutical Division of Unique Pharmaceutical Laboratories Ltd. (UPLL), which was acquired by the Holding Company on a going 
concern basis, had received demand notices from Department of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Govt. of India, New Delhi demanding a sum of  
` 461.47 lakhs in respect of the Bulk Drug Metronidazole and a further sum of ̀  591.05 lakhs in respect of the Bulk Drug Oxyphenbutazone. 
These amounts were claimed on hypothetical basis in 1996, under para 7(2) of DPCO 79 read with para 14 of DPCO 87 and para 12 of 
DPCO 95, long after repeal of DPCO 79 and DPCO 87 and gains allegedly notionally made by it by procuring the Bulk Drugs at alleged lower 
cost. The Holding Company has filed Writ Petitions bearing No 446 of 2008 in respect of demand for Oxyphenbutazone and Writ Petition 
No. 2623 of 2007 in respect of demand for Metronidazole in Bombay High Court.  These Writ Petitions have been admitted and the Hon. 
High Court has restrained the Government from adopting coercive steps to recover the amount till the disposal of the Writ Petition on the 
Holding Company furnishing security as per the Orders.  The Holding Company has already furnished the Bank Guarantee of ̀  402.35 lakhs 
as Security.  As per the legal advice received by the Holding Company, there is no liability and, accordingly no provision is being made in 
the Accounts for these claims and demands.

(` in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
•	 Central Excise, Service tax & GST demands / show causes
	� (against which the Company has made pre deposit of ` 6.24 lakhs, Previous year  

` 6.82 lakhs)

493.31 415.39

•	� Income Tax (against which the Company has made pre deposit of ` 7.63 lakhs, 
Previous year ` 7.63 lakhs)

2,204.93 2,477.97

•	� Sales Tax (against which the Company has made pre deposit of ` 0.43 lakh, 
Previous year ` 0.43 lakh)

4.22 4.22

The Company does not expect the outcome of the matters stated above to have a material adverse impact on the Group’s financial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are dependent on outcome of certain event and/or decisions of the relevant authorities 
for the matter under dispute.
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		  ix.	 Investment details:

			�   The Holding Company made annual contribution to the LIC of an amount advised by the LIC. The Holding Company was not informed 
by LIC of the investments made or the break-down of the plan assets by investment type.

			�   The Holding Company expects to make a contribution of ` 1,147.67 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ` 970.23 lakhs) to the defined benefits 
plans during the next financial year.

		  x.	 Risk exposure

			�   Through its defined benefits obligation, the Holding Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are 
detailed below:

			�   Interest rate risk — �The defined benefits obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on Government bonds. If bond yields fall, 
the defined benefits obligation will tend to increase.

			   Salary inflation risk — �Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefits obligation.

			�   Longevity risk —       �The present value of the defined benefits plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the 
plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

			   Investment return risk — �Lower the expected investment return, higher will be the defined benefit obligation.

	 b-	 Cdǐmdc Admdǐs Ok`m, Rs`ee dmc,ne,rdquhbd admdǐsrƢ Tmhptd Og`ql`bdtshb`k K`anq`snqhdr EYD

		�  The Holding Company made provision for the year of ` 0.81 lakh (Previous year ` 0.81 lakh) in respect of staff end-of-service benefits and 
accumulated liability in respect of staff end-of-service benefits is ` 0.83 lakh (Previous year ` 0.80 lakh) as of March 31, 2022 assuming 
that all the employees were to leave as of the reporting date. The Management is of the opinion that no significant difference would have 
arisen had the liability been calculated on actuarial basis, as salary inflation and discount rate are likely to have approximately equal and 
opposite effect.

	 d.	 Compensated absences:

		�  The Holding Company’s employees are entitled for compensated absences, which are allowed to be accumulated and encashed as per the 
Company’s rule. The liability of compensated absences, which is non-funded, has been provided based on the report of independent actuary 
using “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Accordingly, the Holding company has made provision for compensated absences for the year of  
` 382.01 lakhs (Previous Year ` 477.17 lakhs) and accumulated liability is ` 1,562.25 lakhs as of March 31, 2022 (Previous Year ` 1,395.94 
lakhs).

		�  In respect of subsidiary companies, employees are entitled for compensated absences which are allowed to be accumulated and encashed 
as per the respective Company’s rule. The liability of compensated absences has been provided on undiscounted basis. Accordingly, these 
subsidiary companies have made provision for compensated absences for the year ` 339.46 lakhs (Previous Year ` 187.89 lakhs) and 
accumulated liability is ` 422.81 lakhs (Previous Year ` 335.41 lakhs) as of March 31, 2022.

42.	 SEGMENT REPORTING

	 a)	 Operating Segment:

		�  Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated 
regularly by the decision makers at respective entity level in assessing the performance and deciding on allocation of resources. The 
Group, accordingly, has only one reportable business segment, i.e. ‘Pharmaceuticals’.
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		  Non-Executive Directors

A.	 Mr. Ranjit Shahani (Non-Executive Director-Independent Chairman)

B.	 Ms. Padmini Khare Kaicker (Non-Executive Director-Independent)

C.	 Mr. Sumit Bose  (Non-Executive Director-Independent)

D.	 Mr. Gaurav Trehan (Non-Executive Director)

E.	 Mr. Prashant Kumar (Non-Executive Director)

F.	 Mr. Sanjay Nayar (upto January 25, 2022) (Non-Executive Director)

G.	 Ms. Ananya Tripathi (upto March 11, 2022) (Non-Executive Director)

	 V	 Relative of KMP

A.	 Mr. Nirav S. Mody (upto August 31, 2020)

B.	 Mr. Jay B. Mehta (upto August 31, 2020)

C.	 D. B. Mody HUF (upto August 31, 2020)

D.	 S. B. Mody HUF (upto August 31, 2020)

	 Following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(` in lakhs)

 Name of the Related Party Nature of Transaction 2021-22 2020-21

(I) Holding Company

Tau Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. Dividend Paid 6,885.83 3,624.53

(II) Entities controlled by Key Management 
Personnel

a. Jyotindra Family Trust Payment of Rent N.A. 19.62

b. Dinesh Family Trust Payment of Rent N.A. 4.87 

c. Shirish Family Trust Payment of Rent N.A. 4.87 

d. Jyotindra Mody Ventures LLP Payment of Rent N.A. 174.07

Reimbursement of Expenses N.A. 4.07

e. D. B. Mody Enterprises LLP Payment of Rent N.A. 174.07

f. Shirish Mody Property LLP Payment of Rent N.A. 174.07

g. Lekar Pharma Ltd. Sale of Goods N.A. 46.35

Purchases of Goods N.A. 2,819.19

Receipt of Manufacturing Charges N.A. 22.35

Acquisition of business undertaking N.A. 850.00

(II) Key Management Personnel: Remuneration:

 Short-term employee benefits 967.64 1,011.76

 Post-employment benefits 44.43 108.32

 Other long-term benefits# 57.46 1,876.12

Outstanding Payable - 198.13

(III) Remuneration to Non-Executive and 
Independent Director

Sitting Fees 79.00 89.80

Commission 61.00 43.50
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49.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

	� The Group’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The Group’s financial assets comprise mainly 
of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, trade receivables and other receivables.

	 The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

	 a)	 Credit Risk

	 b)	 Liquidity Risks

	 c)	 Market Risk

	 Risk Management Framework

	� Group’s Senior Management (“Management”) has overall responsibility for establishment of the Group’s risk management framework.  
the Management is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee. 
The Management identifies, evaluates and analyses the risks to which the Group is exposed to and set appropriate risk limits and controls to 
monitor risks and adherence to limits.

	� The Management periodically reviews its risk policy and systems to assess need for changes in the policies to adapt to the changes in market 
conditions and align the same to the business of the Group. The Management, through, its interaction, and training to concerned employees, 
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which concerned employees understand their roles and obligations. The 
Audit Committee oversees how the Management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews 
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks to which the Group is exposed. The Audit Committee is assisted in its 
role by the internal auditor wherever required. Internal auditor undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and 
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

	 a)	 Credit Risk:

		�  Credit risk, is the risk that a counter-party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, 
including deposits with banks, mutual funds and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

		�  The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficiently high credit standards and financial strength. 
The Group’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions is 
reasonably spread amongst the several counterparties.

		�  Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments and other balances with banks, is limited and there is no collateral held against 
these because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by the reputed credit 
rating agencies.

		�  As regards credit risk for investment in mutual funds, the Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing mainly in debt securities 
issued by mutual funds, which are of high credit ranking from rating agency like CRISIL or the equivalent rating agency. The Group monitors 
changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the Group 
adjusts its exposure to various counterparties from time to time.

		�  Credit risk from trade receivables is managed by the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. Trade receivables are mainly from stockist, distributors and direct customers and are mostly non-interest bearing. Trade 
receivables generally ranges from 30 - day to 180- day credit term. Credit limits are established for customers based on internal criteria 
and any deviation in credit limit require approval of the Head of the department and / or Directors depending upon the quantum and overall 
business risk. Majority of the customers have been doing business with the Group for more than 3 years, and they are being monitored 
by individual business managers who deals with those customers. The Management monitors trade receivables on regular basis and 
take suitable action where needed to control the receivables crossing set criterias / limits. Also, in the case of international business, 
particularly new customers, the Management reviews the business risk by evaluating economic situation of the country and the customers, 
and generally starts the relation either on advance payment or on the basis of confirmed irrevocable Letter of Credit.

		�  The Management does an impairment analysis at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number 
of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Further, the Group’s customers base 
is widely distributed both economically as well as geographically and in view of the same, the quantum risk also gets spread across wide 
base and hence management considers risk with respect to trade receivable as low. Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the year, 
` 6,845.93 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ` 6,284.42 lakhs) is due from a single counter party which is in excess of 10% of total trade receivables.



198

		�  For trade receivables, as a practical expedient, the Group determines credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision 
matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables, and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates.

		�  Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach as at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Expected credit loss as at the beginning of the year 480.34 424.77

Changes during the current year (105.65) 55.57

Expected credit loss as at the end of the year 374.69 480.34

	 b)	 Liquidity Risk:

		�  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring 
unacceptable losses. The Group’s objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral 
requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. 

		�  The Group has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and 
liquidity management requirements.  The Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents.  
The Group also has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash or cash equivalent available to meet 
all its normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.  Working capital requirements are adequately addressed by 
internally generated funds. Trade receivables are kept within manageable levels.  The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash 
equivalents and other highly marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities over 
the next three to six months.  

		  Exposure to Liquidity Risk

		  The following are the remaining contractual maturities of undiscounted financial liabilities at the reporting date.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Less than 1 
Year

More than 1 
Year

Total Less than 1 
Year

More than 1 
Year

Total

Non-Derivatives

Borrowings 2,631.50  – 2,631.50 3,264.46  – 3,264.46

Trade Payables 22,447.97  – 22,447.97 18,692.34  – 18,692.34

Other Financial Liabilities 6,646.67 2,061.76 8,708.43 7,561.50 514.14 8,075.64

Derivatives

Forward Contracts –  – – 45.74  – –

	 c)	 Market Risk:

		�  Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
conditions.  Market risk comprises three types of risks;  

		  i.	 Interest Rate Risk

		  ii.	 Currency Risk and

		  iii.	 Equity Price Risk.  

		�  Financial instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, investments, trade receivables, trade payables, loans and derivative 
financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing 
the return













204

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Level Valuation techniques and key inputs

Financial Assets at amortized cost (current)

Other Security Deposits 148.08 113.03 3 Discounted cash flow method using 
interest rate for similar financial 

instrument

Ehm`mbh`k @rrdsr `s E`hq u`ktd sgqntfg oqnǐs 
and loss (current)

 

Investment in mutual funds – 66,497.48 1 Quoted NAV in active markets

Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 16) 293.23 466.62 2 Forward contracts are valued using 
available information from the banks.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income (current)

Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 16) 132.89 – 2 Forward contracts are valued using 
available information from the banks.

Financial Liabilities at Fair value through 
profit and loss (current)

  

Derivative designated as hedge – 45.74 2 Forward contracts are valued using 
available information from the banks.

		�  Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, short-term loans, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial assets/liabilities approximate 
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair 
values are consistent with those used for the year ended March 31, 2021.

		�  During the reporting period ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair 
value measurements.

	 C)	 Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances for Level 3 fair value:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020 -21

Investment in Equity shares

Opening Balance 1,290.87 1,288.47

Fair value changes of Investment designated as FVTPL (18.67) 2.40

Closing Balance 1,272.20 1,290.87

One percentage point change in the unobservable inputs used in fair valuation of Level 3 assets or liabilities does not have significant 
impact in its value.
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52.	 RATIOS

	 The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:

(` in lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at March 31, Variance 
 (in %)2022 2021

1 Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.32                    4.50                (26.12%)*
2 Debt-Equity ratio Borrowings Total Shareholder’s Equity 0.026                  0.025               2.84%
3 Debt service coverage ratio Earnings Available for 

Debt Services 
Debt Service 11.17                    8.84              26.36%

4 Return on Equity ratio Net Profit after Tax Total Shareholder's Equity 18.09% 24.78% (6.69%)
5 Inventory turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 2.23                    2.26                (1.30%)
6 Trade payables turnover 

ratio
Net Credit Purchases Average Accounts 

Payables
4.49                    4.60                2.39%

7 Trade receivables turnover 
ratio

Net Annual Credit Sales Average Accounts 
Receivables

5.13                    5.56                (7.73%)

8 Net capital turnover ratio Net Annual Credit Sales Working Capital 2.72                    1.69                60.95%#
9 Net profit ratio Net Profit after Tax Net Annual Credit Sales 15.92% 21.96% (6.04%)
10 Return on Capital Employed Earnings Before Interest 

and Tax
Capital Employed 21.17% 25.98% (4.81%)

11 Return on Investments Income generated from 
investments

Time weighted-average 
investments

5.68% 10.15% (4.47)%

	 *Redemption of current investment for acquisition of brands leads to variation in ratio.
	 # Redemption of current investment for acquisition of brands leads to decrease in working capital, and the same resulted to variation in ratio.

53.	 RECLASSIFICATION NOTE
	 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

54.	 UNFORESEEABLE LOSSES
	� The Group has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable 

losses. At the year end, the Group did not have any long-term contracts (including derivative contracts), for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

55.	 IMPACT OF CODE ON SOCIAL SECURITY, 2020
	� The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020, which would impact the contributions by the Group towards  

Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on  
November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders, which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Group will assess 
the impact and its evaluation, once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in 
which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

56.	 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
	 a)	 Dividend

		�  The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has recommended a final dividend of ` 8.00 per fully paid up equity shares (face value of  
` 2/- each) amounting to ̀  6182.56 lakhs for the financial year 2021-22, which is based on relevant share capital as on March 31, 2022. The 
actual dividend amount will be dependent on the relevant share capital outstanding as on record date / book closure. The recommended 
dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Holding Company.

	 b)	 Acquisition of Trademark assignment of Azmarda from Novartis AG:

		�  On April 01, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company approved the trademark assignment of Azmarda brand, for use and 
commercialisation within India, from Novartis AG, Switzerland, for a consideration of USD 32.5 Million (` ~ 246.00 lakhs). The transaction 
was complete on April 11, 2022.












	Coporate Overview 21 July for Reference.pdf 
	a0e3fc0a284872f13d74cddbf8f49eff67415bfb314f0d937dab51933e9fdff8.pdf
	J B Statutory Report - 2.pdf
	_GoBack
	_GoBack

	J B _Standalone Account.pdf
	_GoBack

	J B _Consolidated Account.pdf
	_Ref524963384



